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The majority of our brands are ranked
No.1 or NoO. 2 in the United States.

Infant Care

Skin Care

Feminine Care

Razors & Blades

Lighting

Batteries




We see growth.

Building on a foundation of
two unmiversally recognized
brands in a single category,
Energizer quickly grew to four
established brands in two major
consumer goods categories.
With the strategic addition of
Playtex Products, we enter fiscal
2008 with an increasingly diver-
sified portfolio of leading brands
in complementary consumer
goods categories.
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Financial Highlights

Energizer Holdings, Inc. is a consumer goods company operating globally in the broad categories of househoid
and personal care products. We currently offer solutions in the portable power and lighting praducts domains
of household products and in the wet shave and personal greoming domains of personal care products. Our
mission is to provide consumers with solutions to their portable power and personal grooming needs better
than anyone else in a manner that rewards all stakeholders — cansumers, customers, colleagues and
shareholders. Energizer trades on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol ENR.

Year Ended September 30, 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

Net Eamings (in millions)

Net Earnings, excluding certain unusual items $321.4 $260.9 $280.7 $261.0 $221.8
SWS inventory write-up, net of taxi (58.3)
Net Earnings $321.4 $260.9 $280.7 $261.0 $16835

Diluted Eamnings Per Share

Net Earnings, excluding cerlain unusual items 5 551 $ 4.4 $ 3.82 $ 313 $ 251
SWS inventory write-up, net of taxs {0.66)
Net Earnings $ 5.51 $ 4.14 $ 3.82 $ 3.13 $ 1.85
Dituted Weighted-Average Shares Qutstanding 58.3 G3.1 73.5 83.4 88.2
2 Free Cash Flow (in millions) ™
Operating cash flow $445.3 $373.0 $295.9 $479.3 $437.9
Capital expenditures [8B.6) 94 9 (103.0) (121.4) (73.0
Free Cash Flow $ 356.7 32781 $192.9 $357.9 53649

MNon-GAAP Financial Presentation

In adchhion to s earnings presented in accardance with generally uccepled accouning prinGiples {GAAPY, Energizer hias presonted certan non-GAAR earnings in the table above
which it helieves are useful [0 readers in addition to tracitional GAAP measures. Thesa measures should not be considered as an alternative to comparable GAAP measures.

ta) In 2003, earnings are presented with and without the mpact of & wiite-up recorded on nvenkory acquired through the purchase of Schick-Wilkinsen Sword (SWS) rom Phizer,
GAAP requires mventory Lo be valuea as f Energizer was i distnbutor purchasing Ine inventory al far markel value, as opposed to Its historical manufacturing cost. As a result,
there was a ona-time allocation of purchase price 1o 1ha aggured invenlory which was $88.7 million, pre-tax, or 583 milion, atter tax, higher than historical manufacturing
cost, Because inventary value and cost of product sold tor all product manutactured after the acquistion date sre based upon actual produchon costs, as dictated by GAAP,
Energizer believes prasenting sarnings excluding the inventory writ-up is uselul to investors as an additional basis for compivrisen 1o prior and subsequent penods.

(13} Fine cash flow is defined as net cash provided by operaling activities net of addiiens 1o and disposals of property, ptant andd agupment. The Company views free cash flow as
an important indicator of its ahility to repay debt, fund growth and raturn cash to sharehalders. Free cash flow is not a measure of the residual cash llow that is available for
dhserationary expenditures, since the Comgpany has cenan non-discretionary obligations, such as debt service, that are not deducted iom Ihe measure. For April 1, 2000 to
Septembzer 30, 2007, cumulative cash flow and capital expendituras wete $2.67 bilion and 130.64) bilion, respectively. Cumulative hee cash flow lor the period April 1, 2000 to
Septermnber 30, 2007 was $2.03 billon,

Net Sales Eamings Per Share
in billions excluding unusual items as noted above

$223 $2.81 $299 $3.08 $3.37 $2.51 $3.13 $3.82 $4.14 $5.51
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[ravid P. Hatficld

President and Chigf Executive Officer,
Energizer Personal Care

To Our Shareholders:

Joseph W. McClanathan
President and Chief Executive Officer,
Energizer Household Products

Ward M. Klein

Fiscal 2007 was another strong year for Energizer Holdings as we overcame
significant challenges, gained momentum and market share, and expanded our
consumer products portfolio with the acquisition of market-leading brands -
achieving double-digit earnings growth and strengthening our businesses. [n
just seven full years as a stand-alonc company, we have grown into a $2 billion
battery company and §1 billion razor company — and with the addition of Playtex
Products, Inc., we eagerly enter fiscal 2008 as a $4 billion enterprise.

Looking ahead, we see innovation in our products and

PC]'f(l['lllilll(,‘t: in our ()[)(!l‘dli()llﬁ. We see momentim in our

businesses and continued growth in sharcholder value.

Financial Performance

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2007,
Energizer’s net earnings were $321.4 million com-
pared to 3260.9 million the prior vear and carnings
per share climbed 1o $5.51 from $4.14 the year before,
Net sales for the year reached a record $3.4 billion,
up from $3.1 hillion the previous year.

Growth in earnings per share comtinued strong and
steady, fucled by the profitability of our operations and
share repurchase program, We are committed to a goal
of at least 10 percent growth in earmings per share and
have consistently surpassed than rget with a com-

pounded annual growth rate of 24 percent over the last

six years. Reflecting this consistent growth in earnings per

share, our share price vver that period has appreciated

265 percent with a vear-end price of $110.85 per share.

From owr spin-off through the end of fiscal 2007, a

$100 invesument in Energizer would have grown o
$522 at a compounded annual rate of 25 percent com-

parf.:(l to 9 percent for the 8&P MidCap 400 Index.

Cash flow and priorities. Generating strong, stable cash
flows continues as a mjor focus as we strive to build our
business, maintain and enhance financial flexibility, aned
increase shareholder value. Including free cash flow of
$356.7 million in fiscal 2007, we have generated $2.03
billioan in free cash flow since our spin-olf in 2000,

Our priorities for the use of cash flow include funding
innovation in our produtcts, acquiring companies and
brands to complement our existing businesses and repan-
chasing shares. Priovitization depends on which uses are
expected o generate the highest sharcholder rewrns.

Last year, we were active and successful on all [ronts.

Product Innovation
Innovition in products and technology helps Energizer
better meet the needs of today's consumers. In our

battery business, we provide portable power solutions

Chief Exacutive Qttcer
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Stock Price Performance

The cumulative total return ! ! ! !
on $100 invested in Energizer $500 : : : :
Holdings, I from the first ! , : '
day of trading on April 3, 2000 $400 1 ' 1 !
1$21.25 per share closing stock : : : :
price} through September 28, $300 : : : :
2007 ($110.85 per share closing 1 ] 1 |
stock price) reached 422 percent $200 : : . :
1 3

versus B0 percent for the S&P
MidCap 400 Index.

="y~ Energizer

——— S&P MidCap 400

OCT 02 ==

oCT 01 -

for an increasingly mobile, techno-centric population
and the proliferation of elecironic gadgets tha drives
their lives. Our Energizer® *® Lithium® cells deliver
the stable, long-lasting power preferred by today's high-
drain digital devices. Our compict, lithium-powered
Energi To Go® chargers deliver on-the-go hybrid power
tor cell phones and iPod® devices, Our top-selling
rechargeable batteries and innovative chargers are
designed specifically to match conswmers’ busy
lifestytes. And we are in the forefront of bringing etfi-
cient LED technology to portable lighting products.

In our wet shave business, we continue o build on
our successful Schick® Quattro® and Inwition® systems
with innovative extensions like the Quattro® Dispos-
able, the world’s first premium four-blade disposable
razor; the upcoming Quattro® Titaninm Trimmer, the
only razor that shaves, edges and trims; and advanced
Intition Plus® with an improved crgonomic handle

and pivoting head.

Playviex Acquisition

Consistent with our long-term strategy and our priorities
for the use of cash flow, we acquired Plavtex Products.
Inc. eltective Ociober 1, 2007 for approximately $1.9
billion, of which $1.6 billion was linanced with new
debt, For the 12 months ended September 30, 2007,
Playtex generated wotal pro forma sales of $773 million,
approximately 92 percent of which are generated in
North America. Playtex is a leading consumer products
company with a portfolio of well-known brands, most
with No. 1 or No. 2 market positions, in three cuegories

- skin care, feminine care and inlant care.

Fit with Energizer. W view Playtex as a terrific fit with
Encrgizer’s culture, businesses and growth strategices,

Pliyvtex has sirong brands in stable or growing personal

ocT 03 - - -
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care categories adjucent 1o citegories where we currently
compete, with particular strengihs and opportunities
with the target iudience of female consumers. s prod-
uets enjoyv healthy margins with strong, predictable cash
flows similar to our existing houschold and personal
grooming products. We share similar customens and dis-
tribution channels in the United States and Canada, And
we dre adding a strong, seasoneedd management team and
skilled colleagues. We believe Plavtex will add significant
value to Energizer, innovating in the categories in which
it competes, selectively expancing into global markets
using our distribution network, and achicving synergistic
savings as we integrate our businesses.

With the addition of Plavtex, Energizer has a more
diversitied portfolio of branded products and greater
scale in the personal care category, now more evenly
balanced with our houschold goods business, As such,
we are restructuring the company into the Houschold
Products Division (Energizer® and Eveready®) and the
Personal Care Division (Schick-Wilkinson Sword and
Playtex Products), and going forward, we will report

business and financial results in those two sepments.

Share Repurchase

In returning cash 1o sharcholders, we continue to favor
opportunistic share repurchase over dividends, giving
us greater operating and financial Hlexibilitv. During
fiscal 2007, the company bought back 0.8 million
shares of its conumon stock for $53 million. Since our
2000 spin-off, we have repurchased 48 percent of the
original shares outstanding — a total ot 46.2 million
shares for $2.0 billion at an average price of $42.72,
well helow current market prices, Near term, however,
our priority is debt repayment, which inereased as a

result of the acquisition of Playvtex Products.
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Energizer® MAX®
e

Nearly 50 yaars ago, Energizer invented
[}
the first commercia'lly viable alkaline battery.
i l e . !
Today. our plopular flagship Energizer® max”

batteries‘de‘liver dependable, powerful
performa‘nc? and long life in the devices
consumers use every day - from toys

and handheld games to MP3 players

'Eﬂér/}er,
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and flashligr?ts.




We see mnovation.

Quattro® Titanium Trimmer

The Quattro® Titanium Trimmer, planned for an early
spring 2008 introduction, is the only razor that shaves,
edges and trims - combining a close, precise shave
with facial hair grooming. Built into the waterproof
handle, a battery-powered trimmer incorporates

a high-efficiency compact motor and low-friction
technology to deliver the functionality of a much

larger trimmer.

Ememg To G fear TRod]

SpecHicallidesigaeuRomtoday SR nEao) litestyesy
ghelcompacitnerdizeditnergiliol-olrortab EllowestodiRod M
inirodficedhuliali> 00 Mchargestandlprovidestextendsdlplayitime]
icktvatetyioRodNinodelsiiasknucitastdcRiolstointsiciplay 2
CobiipiipglicloroadealistigRingiplodacts) baclyeRtbek2oa @ 2 e &ff WREm oEiRg)
w1 Ttale, (PR ety EFeaeEs: 6 his ¢ ey ¢ Wi (ntheloth .
& HE]"T@ @ﬁm r@@ﬁiﬁﬁj Attbclottdooy § o MR AT TR D e RS A A AR
Enthlsiasgagdides giediaotipdlotgexcltsvel q ffOIhm[pImﬁ ((BWWW

Haitsree: BEGRTAy ey, FREEhET &

R\ T eatBup aleitinafed geliERliGhY Libelspacersavinglkrergizen (enarqedeasiyifitshotal

Soffcesiode iematbugutyescexiead e ipacket¥parseloddrawersapafs!ides] fopiolcitwolAAsTand]
iowcIAAS SRVttt Daradedfdesignlandlenbancedlchargelstatts]

Ehnstimesholeeiciiemparatiicesy
CopirodapalightwegRides|igus fpdcatorRtbiskiardiwokinglchargegisleasisgiokiseltnanfeverd

o L SR SR e S TS




Enevgizer Holdings, fne, 2007 Annial Repost

a loyal user base.

Operational Perfornmance

For fiscal 2007, our Batteries and Lighting Producis
segment accounted for 71 percent of company sales
andl 75 percent of profus, while our Razors and Blades
segment contributed 29 percent of sales and 20
percent of profits. With commercial and production
operations in 49 countries and distribution in another
131 countrics, we market our producis throughest
most of the world, Currently, 54 percent of sales and
68 percent of prolits are generated owside the

United States.

Batteries and lighting products. Total battery

sales increased 11 percent last year boosted by sales
increases across all major product groups. Perforn-
ance battery sales climbed over 20 pereent, fucled by
our leadership in lithium and rechargeables which best
address the high-drain needs of oday's digital devices.
At vear-end, our share of the U.S. bauery market
reached 39 percent.

Battery margins continue o feel the impact of
higher raw material costs, particularly the price of zine
and other metals. [n the first quarter of fiscal 2007, the
SpoL price of zine reached $2.10 — a four-fold increase
in 24 months. Although zine prices moderated some-
what by vear-end, higher commuadity costs added 390.1
million to the cost of goods in fiscal 2007, partially
offset by bauery price increases in U.S. and selected
international markets, plus forward buying on zinc
o lock in helow spot rates.

With our universally recognized Energizer® and
Eveready® brands, we offer the broadest range of
portable power solutions and a comprehensive prod-
uct porttolio that spans three distinet segments of the
overall battery category — household batteries, specialty

batteries and baten-powered lighting products.

Consumer Sampling

Quattro® Disposable, the world’s first premium four-blade disposable
razor, was introduced in February 2007 in versions for both men and
women. Consumer trial is a key component of new product launches,
and throughout the year, we used aggressive sampling including in-store,
on-campus and direct to consumer initiatives to successfully establish

Household batteries, our primary scgmcm. includes
performance products such as Energizer” 2 Lithium®
batteries, Energizer® ¥ Titanium Technology® alka-
line batteries, top-selling Encrgizer® Rechargeable®
batteries and chargers, and the Encrgizer® Energi To
Go? family of products: as well as premivnm butterics
ted by our Energizer® MAX® flagship alkaline brand
and price basteries with Ever sady” carbon zine and

Evercady? Gold?® alkaline batteries.

Razors and blades. Driven by double-digit growth
of our Quattro® and Intuition® platforms and line of
disposables, sales for the Razors and Blades segment
increased a healthy 6 percent last year. At year-end, our
share of the wet shave category was 19.6 percent in our
eight major markets.

With the successful introduction of the Quuurcﬁ
Disposable Tast year and upcoming launch of the next-
generation Quattro® Titanium and Quattro” Titanium
Trimmer, we anticipate continued growth for our SWS
franchise, particulaury in international markets where
fiscal 2007 sales increased b percent, excluding o~
rency impacts,

We compete aggressively in all three segments of
the global wet shave category — men's shaving systems
with advanced Schick® Quauro®, the world's first four-
bladed razor, and Xtremes® and Protector®; women’s
shaving systems with Schick® Intuition® and Intuition
Plus®, (e only razor that lathess, shaves and molstur-
izes simultameously in one easy step, and Quanro® For
Women®, Silk Effects® Mlus and Lady Protector®; and
disposables with the Quawro® Disposable in versions
for both men and women, introduced in early 2007 in
the United States, and Schick™ Xaeme3 ™ and Schick®

ST St Twin®.
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Energizer Bunny®

Since it first debuted in 1989, the unstoppable Energizer Bunny™ has
become a cultural icon representing the long-lasting dependabitity and
powerful performance consumers want in a battery. As one of advertis-

ing's most recognizable symbols, the drum-beating Energizer Bunny®
is one of the Top 5 Advertising lcons of the 20th Century - and its
popularity and brand equity just keeps going and going.

Corporate Initatives
Cost containment efforts. Throughout the vear, we
continued our focis on continuous improvement
across owe global manufaciuring operations and redue-
ing overhead throughout our business Processes.

Our lean initiative, primarily in our battery busi-
ness, continues 1o deliver substantial cost savings
as we seek to eliminate non-added value activities.,
In 2007, 1ean efforts resulied in improvemenis in
Productivity and efliciency valued at over $25 million,
partly moderating the impact of raw material CXpenses
on ]}l'( )('ll(:l COSIS.

[0 our bantery manufacturing facilities, for exmnple,

lean has helped reduce the time needed 1o change over

amachine from makiig AAS 10 AAAs from nine hours
to just one hour, Applying lean savings w our U8,
Mashlight operations has allowed us (o partially offsee
higher manerial costs while an the same time reducing
product development time.

The reorganization and integration of our Euro-
[rean operations has been completed and, as a resalt,
Energizer's global organizational platforn is stable and
peised for future growih. Since the acquisition of SWS
in 2003, we have consoliduted back ofifice and support
lunctions and inegrated commercial maragement
arganizations around the world, except in Japan and

North America.

Leadership changes. At the end of March 2007, Joe
Lynch retired as President of Schick-Wilkinson Sword,
having been instrumental in the successiul integration
of the Schick business and in guiding recent product
Lwnches. particularly within the Quatiro® and Intu-
ition® franchises. David Hatticld, a nearly 20-vear
company veteran and most recently Executive Vice

President and Chief Marketing Otficer, was selected

to succeed him. David brings exceptional marketing
expertise and leadership continuity as he oversees
the integration of Playtex and formation of the new
Personal Care Division.

Also during the vear, Bill Stiritz was appointed
Chairman Emeritus of the Board, having provided
cifective leadership and oversight as Chainnan of the
Board since the company’s spin-off in 2000. He contin-
ues 1o contribute and serve as a member of the Board
and chairperson of the Finance and Oversight Com-
mittee, Pat Muleahy, the company’s Chief Executive
Officer from the spin-off until January 2005 and the
Vi

Chairman of the Board. He brings a continuity of

e Chairman of the Board since then, was appointed

lcadership, intimae knowledge of the company and

vast experience in the battery industry,

What Do We See Going Forwad?

We are excited about the funre. We look forward

to colluborating with our new colleagues within our
team-oriented culture and broadening our portivlio
of world-class brimds with an arvay of well-know
consumer prochects. We are passionate abouw building
on our global momentum with product innovation
and the delivery of solutions o consumers better than

anyone else.

o0 0T

Ward M. Kiein
Chiel Executive Officer
Energizer Holdings, Inc.

November 16, 2007




We see momentum.

Why Playtex?

The acquisition of Playtex Products brings us a
group of widely respected products with strong
brand equity, further diversifies our portfolio of
_ consumer products, expands our presence in
P ; the personal care category, and adds a team of
talented and dedicated colieagues.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition

{Dodars in malions, except per snare and porcentage dala)

The fellowing discussion is asumianany of the key Bctors managemend
constders necessary in reviewing Energizer Holdings, Inc’s (the
Company) historical basis resubts of operations, opevating segment
results, and liquidity and capital resources. The Company includes
the battery business (Energizer) and the vazors and blades business
(Schick-Wilkinson Sword. or SWS). This discussion should be read

in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements andd

related notes,

Bautery Business Overview

Encrgizer is one of the world's Jargest manufacturers and marketers
of batteries and Hashlights competing primarily in the retail batery
category. We define the retai] hattery category as houschold batteries
(alkadine, carbon vinc. lithium and rechargeable) and specialty
hatteries (minjature and photo). We market a complete line of
household batteries with two primary brands, Energizerand Evercaddy,
which are well known throughout the world.

Alkaline batteries are the predominant honsehold batery chem-

sty in developed parts of the world, while carbon zine batte
continue to play a significant role in less developed countries
throughout the world, Recently, higher power, higher priced lithium
and rechargeable hatteries have grown significantly in response 1o
more demuanding power needs of more advanced deviees suel as
digital cameras. We use our full portfolio of products and brands 1o
meet conswner and retail customer needs and to maimtain aned
enhance cur position across the varied markets of the worklh. Our
presence autsicde the United States (U.S.) runs from highly devel-
oped economic mvkets to emerging markets with lower per capita
income. Our portfolio of preducts allows us to compete inlow price
markets and take advantage of trading consimers up 1o higher per-
forming products as the macrocconmmic treneds improve,

Energizer operates 1 nanufacturing and packaging fuwilities in
12 countrics on four comtinems, Its produets ave marketed and sold
in more than 165 countries, primarily through s diveet sales fore,
andl also through distribicors and whaolesalers.

In the U.S, the battery category is highly competitive as Iwands
compete [or consuner acceptance and retal shelf space. Unit growth
has been positive Tor many years, but moderated in 2007, partially
due w lower hurricane-related activity, Category vidue has grown in
recent vedwrs s consumers trade up o higher performing batteries,
and due o price ingreases in 2000 and 2007 in response o rising
material costs. Overall category value has been negatively nopacted in

recent vears by consumer purchases shifting to larger package sizes

which sell at Jower per unit prices. This impact was less pronounced
in 2007 as compared to the previous two fiscal vears. s icis diflicult
to predict what mnpact, if any, package size mix will have in

the future.

Encrgizer is well positioned 1o meet the needs of custonver and
consumer demaruls. leveraging category expertise, retail understand-
ing and its pordolio of products to give Encrgizer a strong presence
across the retil channels. Energizer estimates its shave of the toral
U.S. retail battery category was approxinely 3% in 2007, 57% in

2006 and 36%, in 2005,

Internationally, the battery category is also extremely competitive,
with Energizer and its competitors fighting for distribution and shelf
space. Unit volume growth is scongest in developing markets and
more modest in developed markets, Pricing increases in response to
vising materiul costs have occurred in a number of markets, but have
alsor kygred inareas where competitive pressures are the greatest. As
in the U.S.. consumer purchases internationally have begun to shift
ter Lirger pick sizes which sell at lower per unit prices, particularly in
7. 1t is unclear how signilicant this package size mix will be in the
futiere, The 1.8, dollar has weakened against most major currencies
over the last vear, improving imernatonal results in U.S. dollar wenns.
Asignilicant portion of Energizer’s product cost is more closely ted
w the U.S. dollar than 1o the local currencies in which the product is
sold. As suely, currencies strengthening relative e the ULS. dollar
improve margins as product costs in local currency terms decline.
Conversely, weakening currencics relative to the U.S. dollar can be
significantly unfavorable unless mitgated through pricing aclions.
Changes in the value of local currencies will continue 10 impact seg-
ment profitability in the future. Ar mid-November 2007 levels, overall

currency transtation is favorable compared to average 2007 raes.

Razors and Blades Business Overview

SWS is the sccond largest manufaciurer and marketer of men’s and
women's wet shave products in the world. SWS operates four manu-
facturing facilities worldwicde and its products are sold in more than
135 countries, s primary markets are the U.S., Canada, Jupan and
the Larger countries of Western Europe. SWS estimates its overall
share of the wet shave category for these major markets at approxi-
mately 2% in 2007 and 21% in 2006 and 2005 with men’s shaving
systems acconunting for the decline in 2007,

Glabally, SWS products hold the nuniber two market position in
the wet shave products category, with one competitor accounting for
asubstantial majority of global wet shave sales, All other competitors
constitute a small ininority of category sales. Category blade unit con-
sumption has been relatively flat for a number of years. However,
product inmovations aned cotresponding increased per unit prices
have accounted for cmegory growth. The category is exuremely
competitive with competicors vying tor consumner loyalty and retail
shelf space,

Asigniticant portion of product cost s closely tied to the U.S.
dollar and the curo. As such, SWS results are highly sensitive to fluc-
tuations in other eurrencies, particularly the Japanese ven, where
much of its prodlucts are sold. Strengthening of currencies compareed
1w the ULS. dollar, and to a lesser extent the curo, improves marging
while declines in such earrencey values reduce margins, At mid-
Novemher 2007 levels, curvency translation is favorable to SWS

compared oo average 2007 rates.

Acquisition of Plavtex Products, Inc. (Plavies)

On October 1, 2007, the Company paid approximately $1.900 for the

ace ion of all outstanding Plaviex common stock. repayment or
defeasance of outstanding Plavtex deb, and other oransaction costs.

Playtex operates eight manufacturing and packaging facilities in the
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U.S. Plavtex is a leading North American manulactorer and marketer
in the skin, feminine and infant care industries, with a diversified
portfolic of wellrecognized branded consumer products.

As a result of the Playtex acquisition, the Company’s woral debr is
just under $3,300 with a blended interest rate of 5.6%. We expect
owr future effective tax rate to be approximately one percentage point
higgher as a result of the Playtex acquisition. This increase rellects the
cemcentration of Playtex profits in the ULS., whiehy has o higher tax
rike than our histoncal average. In addition o the ether impacts from
the Plavtex acquisition, our results for the December and March
quarters will be negatively impacted by an inventory write-up necessary
under purchase accounting rules. The Company will begin reporting

resitlts of Playtex operations as of the beginning of fiscal 2008,

Financial Resualts

Net earnings for the year ended September 30, 2007 were $321.4

compared 1o $260.9 in 2006 and $280.7 in 2005, Basic and diluted

earnings per share in 2007 were $5.67 and $5.51, vespectively, com-

pared 10 $1.26 and $4.14 in 2006 and $3.95 and $3.82 in 2005.

Curvent year net earnings include the following items, stated

o an after-tax basis:

a favorable adjustments 1o deferred 1ax balances and prior years' tax
acaruals and previvusly unrecognized ax benefits related to foreign

Tosses of $21.9, or S0L37 per diluted share, partiully offset by

o charges of $12.2, or $0.21 per diluted share, relued o European
'I“‘Nll‘ll(flllﬁl]g pl‘ngl':lms.
Fiscal 2006 net carnings included the following itcins, siated on
an after-tax basis:
o charges of §24.9, or $0.39 per diluied share, related o Earopean

restructuring programs,

a

a charge of $3.7, or $0L06 per diluted share, to record the cumulative
amount of foreign pension costs that should have been previously

recognized and

favorable adjustments to prior vears” tax acerualbs and previoushy
unrecognized tax benefits related w foreign losses of $16.6,

or $0.26 per diluted share.

Fiscal 2005 net carnings included the following, stated on

an afterax bas

o 1ax benefits totaling $25.3, or 30034 per diluied share, related
o 1ax loss benefits aned adjustments wo prior vear uax accruals,

partially offset by,

=]

a 30.0, or $0.12 por diluted shave, provision celaed w repatriation of

forcign carnings uncder the American Jobs Creation Act and

a

restructuring charges of $8.7, or $0.05 per diluted share, related to

several individually immaterial restructuring projects.

Operating Resulis

=

Net Sales Net sales in 2007 increased $288.2, or 9%, in absolute
dollars, or $212.7, or 7%, on u constant currency basis compared to

2006, All three segments contibuted to the increase. Net sales in

2007 Annual Repert

2006 increased $87.1, or 3%, in absolute dollus and $110.4, or 4%,
un a constant canreney hasis compared 10 2005, Both the North
America and International Battery segments accounted for the 2006
increased absolute dollar sales while the Razors and Blades segment
sales were flat in absolue dollars and up 2% on a constant currency
basis. See Segment Results below for additional discussion of

sales changes.
£

Gross Profit Gross profit dollars increased $123.9 in 2007 with
increases in all three segments, The 2007 increase includes favorable
currency of $58.0. In 2006, gross profit dollars increased $3.1 prima-
rily on increases in the Razors and Blades and North America Battery
segments, partially oflset by a decline in the International Bauery
segment.

Cross margin percentage was 47.7%; of sales in 2007, 48.1% in
2006 and 49.4% in 2005. The margin percentage decline in 2007 is
primarily due o lower margin in our International Battery segment.
The margin percentage decline in 2000 reflects lower profit percent-
age in both battery segments, partially offset by an increase in the
Razors and Blades segment, Higher material costs were the primary
factor in battery gross margin percentage declines in both vears.

See Segment Results for o discussion of gross profic in each

operating segment.

Selling, General and Administrative Selling, general and administra-
tive expense (SGE&A) increased $26.0 in 2007 due to currencey
impacts of $15.0 and higher spending in the hattery businesses, pa-
tinlly offset by lower restructuring charges, In 2006, SG&A increased
$20.5 due to higher resuuctaring charges, and 1o a lesser extent,
increases in each segiment,

SG&A expenses were 18.7%. 19.6% and 19.4% of sales in 2007,

2006 and 2005, respectively, The decline in 2007 was driven by the
lower restructuring charges and lower spending as a percent of sales

in the razors and blades business.

Advertising and Promotion Advertising and promotion (A&F)
increased $26.3 in 2007 with increased spending in both battery seg-
ments and currency impacts of $9.6. ARLP decreased §18.7 in 2006 on
lower spending in the Tneroational Batery and Razors and Blades
segments,

AKP expense was 11.7%, 12.0% and 13.0% of sales for 2007, 2006
and 2005, respectively. ART expense can vy from vear to vear with
new product lannches, strategic brand support initiatives and the

overall competitive environment.

Research and Development Research und development (R&D}
expense was $70.7 in 2007, $74.2 in 2006 and $69.9 in 2005. The
expense in 2006 includes a $4.6 increase in the Razors and Blades

segment primarily related 1o a discrete R&ED project, As a percent of

silus, R&D expense was 2.1% in 2007, 2.47% in 2006 and 2.3% in 2005,

Scgment Results
Operations for the Company are managed via three major segments

- North America Battery (U.S. and Canada battery and lighting

1A

LT
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fDodars in mithons, excent per share and percentage vata)

products), International Battery {rest of world battery and lighting

products) and Razors and Blades (global razors, hlades and related

producisy. The Company reports segiment results reflecting all profit
derived from each ontside customer sale in the region in which the
custoaner is located. Research and development costs for the bauery
sepgments are combined and included in the Towd Batery segiment
results. Research and development costs for Razors and Blades are
included i that segment’s results, Segment performance is evaluated
bascd on segment operating profit exclusive of general corporate
expenses, share-based compensation costs, costs associated with mose
restractuning, integration or business realignment activities aned
mmnortization of intangible assets. Financial items, such as interest
income and expense, are managed on a global basis at the corporate
level, This structure is the basis for the Company's reportable operat-
ing segment information presented in Note 17 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

The Company's operating model includes a combiration of stand-
alone and combined business lunctions between the battery and
rzors and blades businesses, virving by country and region of the
world. Shared functions include product warehousing and disuwibu-
tion, various transaction processing functions and environmental
activities, and in some countries, combined sales forces and nunage-
ment, Such allocations do not represent the costs of such services if
periormed on a stand-alone hasis. The Company applics a fully allo-
cated cost basis, in whicls shared business functions are allocated
hetween the businesses.

Begrinning in the fiest tiscal quarter of 2008, and as o result of the
Plaviex acquisition and subsequent realignment of management
respensibilities, the Company will report resulis of two segments: the
Houschold Products segment, which will include global batteries and
lighting products, and the Personal Care segment, which will include

global wet shave, skin care, [eminine care and intant care,

North America Battery

2007 2006 2005
Net sales $1,330.6 $1,233.8 $1,173.1
Segment profit $ 3305 $ 300.7 $ 2958

For the vear ended Septemiber 34, 2007, sales increased $96.8, or
8%, primarily due to favorable pricing and product mix of $54.8 and
higher sules volume of $38.1. Fiscal 2007 bencfited from price
inareases implemented in both 2006 and 2007 in response o signifi-
cant increases in material costs, For the current vear, Energrzer MAX
unit sales were fla reflecting soft volume in the overall premium
alkaline bartery segment of the category, partially due o virtoally no
hwrricanerelated consumption, Lithium and rechargeable bauery
units grew in excess of 30%, Canadian curvency translation favorably
impacted sales by §3.49.

Gross profic increased $49.9 in 2007 as higher sales wore partially
oftset by higher product costs, primarily due o the increased cost of
zine, Product cost in the current vear was unfavorable 33349 com-
pared o the same period Tast vear as material costincreases of

F40.7 were partially offset by other cost reductions. Segment profit

increased $20.8, or 10%. as higher gross profit was partially offset by
higher advertsing, promotion and selling expenses.

For the yewr ended September 50, 20086, sales increased $60.7, or
5%, virtally all due o higher volne. Erergizer AlAX volume for the
vear increased 4% as higher general demuand was partially offser by
a decline in hurmcane-related battery sales, Fiscal 2006 had approxi-
mately $5 of hwricanerelated sales compined o approximately $21
i 2005, High performance lithium and rechargeable battery voluime
grew more than 409%. Battery charger sales were up more than 50%,
including the lunch of our new Fuergs 1o Go cell phone charger line,
For our pordolio of lower priced products, whicl includes carbon zine
and Foeready Gold alkaline bateries. volume declined 2% in 2006,
Overall pricing and product mix were unfavorable $7.6 in 2006 as

higher list pric

s, particudarly in the katter portion of the vear, were
more thitt oflset by a continuing shift to wade channels that feanne
larger package sizes with lower per unit prices, Canadian corrency
transtation Gworably impacted sales hy $6.1 in 2006 compared 1o 2005,
Gross profit dollars increased $10.9 m 2006 as contribution from
higher sales was partially offset by £16.7 ol unfavorable product costs.
Material and distribution costs were unfaverable $20. with zine cost
increnses accounting for the vast nijority of the 1otal. Segment profit
increased $4.9, as higher gross probitwas partially offset by higher

AKT and general and administrative expenses,

International Battery

2007 2008 2005
Net sales $1,045.7 $913.3 $885.9
Segment profit $ 1777 81773 $178.5

For the vear ended Seprember 30, 2007, net sales increased
$132.4, or 14%, with favorable cvrrency accounting for $45.3 of the
increase. On a constant currency basis, sales increased 10%,, as higher
volumes in all arcas contributed $73.5 and overall pricing and prod-
uct mix was faivorable $13.6. The volume contribution reflects double
digit unit growth rutes for branded alkaline, rechargeable and
lithium batteries, while carbon zinc units declined. Price increases in
a number of markets in response (o material cost increases were pin-
tially offset by unfavorable product mix, primarily in Enrope.

Gross profit increased $32.9 i absolute dolls, but declined $3.1
011 a4 constant currency basis, as the contribution from higher volume
and pricing was more than offset by $49.4 of unfavorable product
cost, primarily due to material costs. Segment profit was essentially
flat in absolute dellars but declined $26.2 excluding currency impacts
due to higher SG&A and A&P expenses in addition w the gross
profitimpace.

For the year ended September 30, 2006, net sales increased $27.4,
or 3%. Excluding currency impacts, International Bagtery sales
increased $38.3, or 4%, on higher volwne partially offsec by unfavor-
able pricing and product mix, primarily in Europe. An extremely
competitive Ewropean pricing environment, combined with sales
stufting to Larger package sizes that sell at lower per unit prices,

accounted Tor the unfavorable pricing.
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Gross profi declined $9.7 in 2006, including $7.0 of unfivorable
cwrency impact. Absent currencies, gross profit declined $2.7 in spiwe
of higher sales as the conuibution of higher voluine was more than
offset by unfavorable pricing and product mix and higher material
costs. Overall product cost was unfavorable $3.6 as higher material
anel distribution costs of $16 were partially offset hy other production
cost savings. Segment profit declined $1.2, including $4.2 unfavorable
currency impact. Absent currencies, segment profit increased 2% as
lower A&P expense more than offset gross profit declines and higher

selling costs,

Razors and Blades

2007 2006 2005
Net sales $988.8 $929.8 $930.8
Segment profit $155.5 $127.7 $107.5

Razors and Blades sales in 2007 increased $54.0, including 826.3
of favorable currency impucts. Initial launch sales of new produocts
in the current vear were approximately $26 compared o approxi-
mately $52 in the same period last year. Absent currency and initial
product liunches discussed above, sales increased 6%, as Quetiro
branded system products contributed $40 of sales growth, dispos-
ables contributed $32 aned Inteition contributed $14 partially offset
by lower sales of older technology products.

Segment profit increased $27.8 in 2007, on $16.4 of conuibu-
tion from higher sales, fvorable curtency of $3.8, and lower 3G&A
and R&D expenses. Lower SG&A reflects cost savings of European
restruciuring. R&D expense declined $3.7 due to the inclusion of a
large, discrete R&D project expense in the prior year.

Razors and Blades sales in 2006 declined $1.0 in absolute dollars
but incrcased $17.5, or 2%, on a constant currency basts. The
increase on a constant currency basis reflects incremental sules of
newly launched products, purtially offset by declines in older tech-
nology products. Excluding currency impacts, Quattre for Women and
Intuitien contributed $44 of sales growth while disposables and the
men's Quattro franchise grew $15 and 38, respectively. These
increases were partially offser by declines in older technology sys-
tems and ancillary product lines.

Tn 2008, segment profit increased $20.2 in absolute dollars and

$27.8, or 26%, on a constant currency basis. Excluding currency,

higher sales, lower produet cost and cost mix accounted for the bulk of

the improved profisabilite, A&P expense declined $9.8 for the vear as
significant reductions in early 2006 were partially offset by a $12.9
increase in the fourth quarter primarily in support of Queattro Tifaiim,
The decline in A&P for the year reflects lower consumer promtions
and sampling, partially oflset by higher advertising. R&D ind market-

ing and selling spending increased §4.6 and $2.5, respectively.
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General Corporate and Other Expenses

2007 2006 2005

General corporate expenses $ 933 % 87.0 % 96.0
Restructuring and

refated charges 18,2 37.4 5.7
Foreign pension charge - 45 -
General corporate and

other expenses $111.5 $1289 $101.7
% of total net sales 3.3% 4.2% 3.4%

General Corporate Expenses General corporate expenses increased
in 20077 compared to 2006 due to higher stock-based compensation,

partially offset by lower project related costs. In 2006, general corpo-
rate expenses decreased 300, due o lower incentive and stock-based

compensation and legal expenses.

Restructuring and Related Charges The Company continually
reviews its battery and razors and blades business models to identify
potential improvements and cost sivings, A project commenced in
2006 to improve elfectiveness and reduce costs of European packag-
ing, warehouse and distribution activities, including the closing of the
Company’s battery packaging facility in Caudebee, France, as well as
consolidation of warehouse and distribution activities.

The Company also commenced a project to integrate battery and
razors and blades commercial management, sales and administrative
functions in certain European countries, In 2007, total pre-tax
charges refated to these projects were $18.2, and include exit costs of
$7.0 which represent employee severance and contract terminations,
as well as $11.2 for other non-exit costs related 10 the project. Towl
pre-ax charges related o the projects were $37.4 in fiscal 2006, and
inclde exit costs of $28.2 which represented employee severance,
contract terminations and other exit costs, as well as $9.2 for other
costs related to the project.

As of Seprember 30, 2007, the projects are substandally complete
and virtually all charges have been recorded. Beginning in 2008, it is
expected the projects will result in $21 to $24 of annualized cost sav-
ings. Cost savings of approximately $17 hiwve been realized in 2007,

See Note & 1w the Consolickited Financial Statements for further

information on restructuring activities.

Foreign Pension Charge In September 2006, the Compuny discovered
that one of its non-U.8. substdiaries had fuiled over several vears to
adjust its statutory pension accounting 1o US. GAAP, resuling in a
cumulative understatement of its pension liability by $1.5 at September
30, 2005. A charge of $1.5, or $3.7 after-tax, was recorded in the fourth
quarter of 2006 o correct the cumulative understatement in prior
vears, in addition to the recording of the 2006 additional U.S, GAAP
expense of $0.6. The Company has determined the effect of this error
is not material to any of its previously issued quarterly or annual finan-

cial statements, including for the year ended September 30, 2006.

Interest and Other Financing Items Interest expense increased $13.3

in 2007 and $25.5 in 2006 due to higher average borrowings resulting

from share repurchases and higher interest rates,

13
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Other Inancing: expense was fwvorable $15.8 in 2007 compared 10
8 UX] 1

2006 due to higher interest income of $11.0 and currency exchange

sins in 2007 compared 1o cirreney exchange losses in 2006, Other

3 ] * &

financing expense was unfiworable $3.6 in 2006 compared o 20035,

primarily due o lower currency exchange losses.

Income Taxes Income taxes, which include federal. state and for-
cign taxes, weve 26,0%. 26.8% and 27.8% of earnings before
imcome taxes in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Income taxes

inelude the following items which impact the overall tax rate:

o In 2007, 2006 and 2005, $4.3, $5.7 and $14.7. respectively, of tax hen-
cfits related to prioy yewrs” losses were recorded. These benetits
refated to foreign countries where our subsidiary subscquaently hegan
1o generite carnings and could rensonably expect future profitability
sufficient to utilize tax loss carry-forwards prior to expiration.
Tproved profitbility in Mexico ine 2007 and 2006 and Germany in

2005 account lor the bulk of the henelits recognized,

a Legislation enacted in Germany in August 2007 reduced the tax rate
applicable to the Company's subsidiuries in Germany for liscal 2008
and bevond. Thus an adjustiment of $9.7 was made 1o reduce

deferred ax liabilities in fiscal 2007,

Adjustients were recorded ineach of the three vears 1o revise previ-
ously recordaed tax accruals to reflect refinement of estimates of 1ax
auributes w amounts in filed returns, seitlement of wx audits and
changes in estimates related o uncertait ax positions in a number
of jurisdictions. Such adjustments decreased die income tax provision

by §7.0, $10.9 and $10.6 in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

2005 included $H0 of additional taxes related o repatriation of for-
cign carnings uneder provisions of the American Jobs Creation Act.
which provided for an 85% exclusion of qualitving dividends from

normal LS, i rates,

Excluding the items discussed above, the income wx percentage was
SLO9% in 2007, 31.5% in 20006 and 32.0% in 2005,

The Company's effective tax rate i highly sensitive to conntry mix
from which carnings or losses are derived. Declines in eamings in
lower tax rite countries, carnings increases in higher tax countries,
increases in repatriation of foreign earmings or operating losses in the
futire could increase future tax rates. Addigonally, adjustments 1o
prior vear tx acerual estimates could increase or decrease future tax

provisions.

Liquidity and Capital Resonrees

Operating Activities Cash flow from operations is the primary fund-
ing source tor operating needs and capital investments. Cash flow
fromn operations was $445.3 in 2007, an increase of $72.3 from 2006
due o improved operacing cash flow before changes in working capn-

tal. Cash flow from opetions was $373.0 in 2006, an increase of

377.1 from 2005, prinarily on lower net working capital investmeny
in 20006,
Working capital. which is defined as cureent assets less current

liabilities, was $R88.5 and $708.2 w1 September 30, 2007 wnd 2006,

respectively. Working capital changes reflect higher current assets,

partially ollset by higher shortterm debt and other current liabili-

tes, Aceounts receivable increased on higher sales and timing of
end of vear velume and prometional structure. Inventories
mereased primarily due o higher material costs. Other current
labilities refleet higher acerued advertsing, promotion and

allowances for both businesses.

Investing Activities Nut cash used by investing activides was $82.3,
R115.6 and $97.1 in 2007, 2006 and 2000, respectively. The Company
made an investment inits prepaid share options {PSO) of $19.6 in
2006, Sce Note 13 for further discussion on the PSO. Capital expen-
ditures were $85.06, $094.0 and $103.0 in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respee-
tively. These expenditres were funded by cash flow from operations,
Capital expenditgres deercased in 2007 due to lower informarion sys-
tems capital spending. See Note 17 of the Consolidated Financial
Statements for capital expenditures by segiment. On October 1, 2007,
the Compuny paid approxinately $1.900 for the acquisition of all out-
standing Plaviex common stock, repavment or defeasance of out-
standing Plavtex debt. and other tansaction costs. See Financing
Activities helow for discussion of financing of the uansaction,

Capital expenditres of approximately $185 are anticipated in

2008 with ncreases in production related capital for existing busi-
nesses and planned spending for Plavtex. Such capial expencitures

are expected to be fimanced with funds generated from operations.

Financing Activities The Company’s total borrowings were $1,625.0
at September M), 2007, The Company maintained total committed
debt Gcilities of 82, 140.0. of which $558.0 was available as of
Septembeer 3, 2007,

In October 20007, the Company borrowed approximately 41,500
under w bridge loan facility which, together with cash on hand was
used o acquire Plaviex. The Company subsequendy refinanced $890
of the bridge loan with long-term debt financing. with waturitics
ranging from hree to 10 vears and lixed mtes ranging from 5.71% to
6.55%,. The Company expecets o replace the remaining outstanding
bridge loan with permanent financing during the December quarter.
As a result ol the new financing arrangement, total owstanding deln
in October was approximately $3.300 and the Company currently has
8387.0 of ackditiomal wailable commined debt tacilites o meetits
ongoing liuidite neeeds,

Uneler the werms of the Company’s debt facilites, the ratio of the
Company’s indebredness to its Earnings Before Interest. Taxes,
Depreciation aud Amottizaion (EBITDA) cannet be greater than
L0 e Loand may not remain above 3.5 1o 1 for more than four con-
secutive quarters. [n addition, the ratio of its owrent vear EBIT o
totab mterest expense must exceed 340w 1 The Company’s ratio of
indebtedness 1o its EBITDA was 2.5 w0 1L and the ratio of is EBIT 1o
total interest expense was 5.9 w I as of Seprenber 30, 2007, Faihne
1o comply with the above ratios or other covenants could result in
acceleration of maturity, which could trigger cross defaudis on other
horrawings. The Gompany helieves that covenant violations resulting

in aceeleration of mannrity is unlikely. The Company’s fixed rate detn
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is callible by the Company, subject 1o a "make whole™ premium,
which would be required o the extent the underlving benchmark

U.S. treasury yvield has dectined sinee issuance,

The Company purchased shares of it comimon stock as [ollows

(shares in millions):

Total

Average

Fiscal Year Shares Cost Price
2007 0.8 85 53,0 $87.67
2006 113 $600.7 $53.02
2008 8.1 $457.4 $56.37

The Company has 8.0 million shares remaining on the current
authorization lrom its Board of Directors 1o repurchase its common
stock in the finure. Future purchases may be mide from time to time
on the open market or through privitely negotiated transaetions, suly-
Jject to corporate objectives ad the discretion of management.

Asummary of the Company's significant contraciial obligations at
September 30, 2007 is shown below. and excludes the impact of the

Playtex acquisition:

Less More
Than 1-3 3-5 Than
Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years
Long-term debit,
including current
maturities $1,582.0 $2100 $567.0 $2500  $555.0
Interest on
long-term debt 377.8 784 129.0 89.5 B0.9
Operating leases 53.6 14.2 211 9.0 9.3
Total $20134 33026 $717.1 353485  $645.2

The: Company has contraetual purchase obligations for future
purchases, which generally extend one (o three months. These obli
gations are primarily purchase orders at fair vatlue that are part of the
normal operations and are veflected i historical operating cash {low
wrends. I addition, the Company has various commitments related 1o
service and supply contricts that contain penalty provisions for eatrly
termination. As of September 30, 2007, we do not believe such pur-
chase obligations or termination penatties will have a significant
effect om our results of operations, linancial position or liquidity posi-
tion in the future.

The Company believes that, prior to and following the acquisition
of Playtex, cash flows from operating activities and periodic borrow-
ings will be adequate to meet shorttermn and long<term liquidity
requirements prior to the neiturity of the Company's crudit facilities,

although no guarantee can be given in this regard.

Market Risk Sensitive Instruments

and Positions

The market risk inherent in the Company’s financial instruments anel
pusitions represents the potential loss arising from adverse changes in
currency rates, commadity prices, interest rates and stock price. The
following visk management discussion and the estimated anwounts

generated Trom the sensitiviey anabyses are forward-ooking statements

of market risk assuming cerain adverse market conditions oceur.
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Company policy allows derivatives to be used only for idendifiable
exposures and, therefore, the Company does not enter into hedges

for tracling purposes where the sole objective is w generate profits.

Currency Rate Exposure The Company generally views its invest-
ments in foreign subsidiaries with a functional currency other than
the US. dollar as long-term. As a resudt, the Company does not gen-
erally hedge these net investments, Capital strucinring techniques
are used to manage the net invesiment in foreign currencics as nec-
essary. Additionally, the Company attempts to limit its U.S, dollar
net monetary liahilities in countries with unstable currencies,

From time to time the Company may employ foreign currency
hedging techniques o mitigate potential losses in carnings or cash
Nornws on forcign currency transactions, which primarily consist of
anticipated intercompany purchase transactions and intercompany
borrowings. External purchase transactions and intercompany divi-
dends and service fees with foreign currency risk may also be
hedged. The primiuy currencies 1o which the Company's foreign
affiliates are exposed include the U.S. dollar, the curo, the yen and
the British pound.

In addition, the Company has investments in Venezuela, which
currendy require government approval to eonvert local curreney to
U.5. dollars at officil government rates. Recently, government
approval for curency conversion to satisfy U.S, dollar liabilities to 15
toreign suppliers has heen delayed, resulting in higher casiy bal-
ances and higher past due U.S. dollar payables within our

Venezuelan subsidiary. If the Company was forced 10 scitle is

Venezuelan subsidiary’s U.S. dollar liabilities using unofficial, paral-
lel cwrrency exchange mechanisims as of September 30, 2007, it
would result in a currencey exchange loss of approximauely $32.

‘The Company uses natural hedging echniques, such as offser-
ting like lorcign currency cash flows, foreign currency derivatives
with durations of generally one vear or less including forward
exchange contracts, purchased put and call options and zero-cost
option collars. The Company has not designated any of these types
of linancial nstrements as hedges for accounting purposes in the
three years ended September 34, 2007.

The Company’s forcign currency derivative contracts outstaneing
at year-end hedge existing balunce sheet exposures, Any losses on
these contracts would be fully offser by exchange gains on the under-
lying exposures, thus they are not subject 1o significant market risk,
The contructual amounts of the Company's forward exchange con-
tracts and purchased currency options in U.S. dollar equivalents

were 367.1 and $21.3 w1 September 30, 2007 ancd 2006, respectively.

Commodity Price Exposure The Company uses raw materials that
are subject to price valatility. The Company will use hedging insuu-
ments as it desires to reduce exposure w variabiliey in cash flows asso-
ciated with future purchases of zine or other commuodities. These
hedging instruments are accounted for as cash flow hedges. At
September 30, 2007, the fair market value of the Company’s out-
standing hedging instriments was an unrealized prestax loss of $15.3,

Contract maturities for these hedges extend into fiscal vear 2000
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During the current fiscal vear, the Company discontinned hedge
accounting treatment for some of its conoacts, most of which were
settled or unwound during the vear These contracts no longer inet
the accounting requirements of a cash flow hedge because it became
probable that the orginal forecasied tansactions would nat ocenr by
the end of the originally specified time period. The pre-tax losses on

these hedyes of $2.5 were recorded in Cost of Products Sold.

Interest Rate Exposure At September 30, 2007 and 2006, the fair
market villue of the Company’s fixed rate debg is estimuted w
S1.4238.1 and $1.45-L8, respectively, using vields obtained from inde-
pendent pricing sources for similar types of horrowing arrangemenis.
The fair value of debt is Tower than the canving value of the
Contpany's debt at September 30, 2007 and 2006 hy $51.9 and $30.2,
respectively. A 10% decrease in interest rates on fixed-rate debt would
have imoreased the fair market value by S40.:4 and $46.2 at September
H), 2007 and 2006, respeetively. See Note 10 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements for additnonal information regarding the
Company's deht,

The Company has interest rare risk with respect (o interest
expense on vartable rate debt. A September 30, 2007 and 2006, the
Compuny had $150.0 and $288.6 variable rate debt outstanding,
respectively. The book value of the Company's variable rate deba
approximates fair value. A hypothetical 10% increase in variable inter-
est rates would liave had an anuual unfavorable impact of 304 and
S$1.8 in 2007 and 2006, respectively, on the Compuany’s carnings
belore taxes andl cash Qows, based upon these yearend debit levels,
Immediatelv following the fiscal 2007 vear-end as a result of the addi-
tionsal debt from the Playtex transaction, a hypothetical 10% increase

in vanable interest rates would have had an annual unfavorable

impact of $3.44 The primary interest rate exposures on variable rate

debt are shortterm rates inthe US. and certain Asian countries.

Stock Price Exposure The Company holds i net-cash settled prepaic
share option (PSO) with a fimancial instinuion o mitigate the after-
1ax impact of changes in the Company’s deferred compensation Tia-
bilities tied o the Company's stock. The fair market value of the PSO
is included in other current assets and was $59.3 and 8508 at
September 80, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Under accounting mles,
the PSOY is a hyvlwid security consisting of a host loan instriment and
an embedded dervative instrument, which is carried at fair value,
The change in fair value of the PSO for the vear ended September

30, 2007 and 2006 resulted in income of $23.2 and 108, respectively.

Scasonal Factors

The Company's battery segment results are signiticantly impacted

in the: first quarter of the fiscal year by the additonal sales vohuime
associated with the December holiday season. particularly in Nowth
Americit First quarter battery sales accounted for 30% of ol banery
net sales in 2007, and 31% of wotal battery sales in hoth 2006 and
200%. In addition, natural disasters, sich as hurricanes, can create
conditions that diive exceptional needs for portable power and spike

battery sales.

Environmental Matters

The operations of the Company. like those of other compinies
engaged in the battery and shaving products businesses, are subjeat 1o
various federa), state, foreign and local Liws anel regulations intended
to protect the public health and the environment, These regulations

primarily relate to worker safery,

- and water quality, underground
fuel storage tanks and waste landling and disposal. The Company s
received notices from the US. Environmental Protection Ageney.
state agencioes and/or private parties secking contribution, that it has
been identified as a “potentially responsible pary”™ (PRPY under the
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and
Liability Act, and may be required to share in the cost of cleanup with
respect to seven federal “Superfund” sites. Te may also be required to
share in the cost of cleanup with respect to two stne-designated sites
or other sites onside of the U.S,

Accrued emvironmental costs at September 30, 2007 were $12.5,
of which $2.6 s expected 1o be spent in fiscal 2008, This accrual is
not measured on a discounted basis. It is diflicult o quantify with
certuinty the cost of environmental matters, particularly remediation
and {uture capital expenditures for enviconmental control equip-
ment. Nevertheless, based on information currently available, the
Company helieves the possibility of material environmental costs in

excess of the acorued mmount is remoie.

Inflation

Management recognizes that inflationary pressires may have an
ardverse efcet on the Company, throvgh higher naterial, Libor and
transportation costs, asset replacement costs and related deprecimion.
and other costs. In general, the Company bas been able to offset

or minimize inflaton eliects through other cost reductions and pro-
ductivity improvements through mid-2005, thus inflaton was not
significant ficror 10 1hat point, More recently, the cost of zine, nickel,
steel, oil and ather commodities used in the Company’s production
and distribution has increased to levels well above thase of prior
vears. Looking forward, we expect material costs for the battery busi-
ness 10 continne 1o be unfavorable, particalarly in the firse quarter of
fiseal 2008 compared (o the first quarter of fiscal 2007, Implemenied
price increases and other product cost snings are expected to fully

offser these increases,

Critical Accounting Policies
The Company identiticd the policies below as eritical woits business
operitions and the understnding of its results of uperations. The
hnpact and any associated risks related to these policies on its busi-
ness aperationms is discussed throughout Managements Discussion
and Analysis of Results of Operations and Finaneial Conditgon where
such policies affect the reported and expected financial results.
Preparation of the financial staements in confonnity with gener-
ally accepred accounting principles (GAAP) in the ULS, reuires the
Company to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reporied
amounts of assets aned labilities, disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilivies. and the reported imonnts of revenues and expenses, On

an ongoing basis, the Company evaluanes its estinmates, including
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those related to customer programs and incentives, product returns,
mventories, intangible assets and other long-lived assets, income
taxes. financing, pensions and other postretirtement bhenefits, awd

contngencies. Actual results could differ from those estimares. This

listing is not intended o be a comprehensive list of all of the

Company’s accounting policies.

& Revenue Recognition The Company's revenue is from the sale of
its products. Revenue is recognized when title, ownership and risk
of Toss pass to the customer. When discounts are offereed o cus-
tomers for early pavment, an estimate of such ciscounts is recorded
as a reduction of net sales in the same pertod as the sale. Standard
sales terms are final and retums or exchanges are not permitted
unless a special exception is made; reserves are established andd
recorded in cases where the right of return does exist for
a particular sale.

The Company ofters a variety of programs, primarily to its vetail
custeners, designed 1o promote sales of its products. Such pro-
grams require periodic payments and allowances based on esti-
mated results of specific programs and are recorded as a reduction
to net sales, The Company acoues at the time of sale the estimated
total payments and allowances associaked with each tansaction.
Additionally, the Company offers programs directly t consumers
o promote the sale of its products. Promotions which reduce the
uldmate comsumer sale prices are recorded as a veduction of net
sales at the time the promotional offer is made, generally using
estimated redemption and participation levels. Taxes we collect on
hehall of governmental authorities, which are gencrally inchaced
in the price to the customer, are also recorded as a reduction off
net sales,

The Company continually assesses the adequacy of accruals for
customer and consumer promotional program costs not vet paid,
To the extent wotal program payments cliffer from estimates, acdjust-
ments may be necessary. Historically, these adjustments have not

been matertal to annual results.

Pension Plans and Other Postretirement Benefits The determina-

ton of the Company’s obligation and expense for pension and
other postretirement benefits is dependent on certain assumplions
developed by the Company and used by actuaries in caleulating
such amounts. Assummptions include, among others, the discount
rate, fuwre salary increases and the expected long-enn rate of
return on plan assets. Actuad results that differ from assuniptions
made are accomulated and amortized over future periods, and
therefore, generally allect the Company’s recognized expense and
recorded obligation in luture periods, Significant differences in
actual experience or significant changes in assumptions may
materially aftect pension and other postretirement obligadgons.

In determining the discomn rate, the Company uses the vield on
high<qquality bonds that coincides with the cash flows of its plans’
estimated payouts. For the U.S. plans, which represent the
Company’s most signilicant obligations, the CidGroup yield curve

is used in determining the discount ratws.

2007 Annual Repont

Of the assumptions listed above, changes in the expected assets
return have the most significant impact on the Company’s annual
carnings prospectively. A one percentage point decrease or
increase in expected assets return would decrease or increase the
Compiny's pre-1ax pension expense by $8.0.

As allowed under U.S. GAAD, the Company’s 1.8, qualificd pen-
sion plan uses Market Related Value (MRV), which recognizes mar-
ket appreciation or depreciation in the portfolio over five vears so

it rechrees the short-term impact of market fluctuations.

Valuation of Long-Lived Assets The Compuny periodically evalu-
ates its longlived assews, induding goodwill and intangible assers,
tor potential impairment indicators. Judgments regarding the exis-
tence of impatrment indicators are based on legal factors, market
conditions and operational performance. Future events could
cause the Company to conclude that impairment indicators exist.
The Company uses the discounted cash flows method to determine
iFimpairment exists. This requires management o make assuimp-
tions regarding future income, working capital and discount rates,

which would affect the impainnent calculation.

Income Taxes The Company estimates income taxes and the
income tax rate tn each jurisdiction that it operates, This involves
estimating axable carmings, specilic taxable ind deductible items,
the: likelihood of generating sufficient futie txable income to
utilize deferred wax assets and possible exposures related to future
tax audits. Deferred tax assets are evaluated on a subsidiary by sub-
sidinry basis for realizabiline, Valuation allowimces are established
when the realization is not deemed 10 be more likely than not,
Future performance is monitoved, and when objectively mueasura-
ble: operating trends change, adjustments are made 1o the valua-
tion allowances accordingly. To the extent the estimates described
ahove change, adjustments to income taxes are made in the period

in which the estimate is changed.

Acquisitions The Company tses the purchase methed, which
requires the allocation of the cost of an acquired business 10 the
assets acquired and labilities assumed based on their estimated fair
alues at the date of acquisition. The excess value of the cost of an
acquired business over the fair value of the assets acquired and
liabilities assumed is recognized as goocwill. The valuation of the
acquired assets and habilities will impact the determination of
futwre operating resulis. The Company uses i variery of information
sources to deternmine the value of acquired assets and linhilities
including: third-party appraisers for the values and lives of property,
identifiable intangibles and fuventories, actiaries for defined hene-
fit retivement plans and legal counsel or other experts W assess the

obligations associated with legal, environmennal or other claims.

Accounting Standards

See discussion in Note 2 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements

related 1o recently issued accomnting standareds,
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Forward-Looking Information

Statenents i the Management's Discussion and Analysis of Resuls of
Operations and Financial Condition and adher sections of this
Annual Report 1o Shareholders that are not histovical, particularly
statements regarding the Company's positioning 10 meel consuimer
demand and the benefits of its portfolio of products: the Compin’s
estimates of its share of total ULS. retail battery marker and share of
the wet shave category in major markets; the impact ol changes in

the value of local arrencies on segment profitability: estimates of the

Company™s normaized ax rate for fiscal 20087 the negative impact
on results in futiee quarters from Plaviex inventory write-ups
required under parchase accounting rules: the Company's anmual-
ized cost savings from European resoructuring projects; estimated
capital expenditures Tor fiscal vear 2008 and their sonrce of finane-
ing: the: likelihood of acceleration of the Company’s debt coverints,
the anticipated adeguacy of cash flows wud the Company’s ahility to
meet liguidity requirements; the impact of adverse changes in inter-
est rates, currency exchange losses in Venezuela and the market visk
of forcign currency denvatives: the mitigating impact of clanges in
vihue of the prepuaid share option on deterred compensation hiahili-
ties: the matcrfadios of futtere experedinmes for emvironmoental maoers
and environmental controb equipments anticipated imaterial cost
increases in the fiest quarter of fiscal 2008, and the imyprct of the
Company’s implemented price imereases and product cost savings in
offsetting those higher costs; petential adjustments 1o aceruals for
promotional program costs: the impact of variations 1o assump-
tians on pension asset retwrns on the Company’s preqdax pension
expenserand the valuation of Yong-lived assets, may be considered
forward-looking stitemernts within the ineaning of the Private
Securities Litigation Retorm Act of THIS, The Comprany cattions
readers not to place undue reliince on any forward-looking state-
ments, which speak only as of the date made.

The Company advises readers that various risks and uncertainties
could affect its financial performance and could cause the
Company’'s actual results for fature periods o differ materially from
these anticipated or projected. Shifts in consumer demands or needs,
competitive activity or product improvements, or further retailer con-
soliditions may dilute or defeat the benclits ol the Comnpian's con-
sutmer postitioning and straegy. The Companv’'s estimmates of is US.

alkaline market share and estimates of share of the wet shave cate-

gorvare based solely on limited dara available to the Company anid
management's reasonable assumptions about market conditions, and
conseguently niay be maccinute, or may not reflect segments of the
retail market. Global economic conditons and flucinations in an-
rency exchange vates could significantly impact carvent exchange
ates, resulting ina more significant impact on segment profitability
than s currently andicipated, The Company’s eflective tax rate for fis-
cal 2008 could be impacted by legisluive or regulatery changes by
federal. sune and Tocal. and foreign, taxing authorities, as well as by

the profitability or losses of the Company's various subsidiane

operitions in both high-tax and low-tax countries. The impact of
Plavtex inventory write-ups could be impacted by changres in these
requirements, inventory levels, and invenmon valuations. With respect
10 the European restructurings, estimaues of annual savings g be
impacted by a number of factors, including limits oncavailable effi-
ciencies, unforeseen integration complesities, and gremer than amic-
ipated ongomg operations expenses associted with the combined
operations. Liguidity issues or alternative cash llow uses, competitive
activity or general cconomic changes could impact the amount and
timing of capital expenditnres, Unforeseen Nuctuations in levels of
the Company’s aperating cash [lows, or inability to maintain compli-
ance with its det covenants, could limit the Comnpany’s ability o
mect luture operating expenses and liquidity requirements. fund
capital expenditures or service s debtas it becomes due. Economic

k

turmoil and curreney fluctuations could inerease the Company™
fromm unfavorable inpact on variable-rate debt, coerency derivatives

and other Anancial instrnents. Deferred compensanon liabilities

reflecting the value of the Conunon Stock may increase signiticantly,

depending on vinket fluctation and eimplovee elections, but such

iner in the value

ase may not be reflected ina comparable incre

of the prepaid share option. Unknown envivonmental liabilities and
greater than anticipated remediation expenses or environmental con-
trol expenditures could have amaterial impact on the Company's
financial position. Fstimates of eivironmental liabilites are hased
npon, among other things, the Company’s pavments and /or aceruals
with respect 1o each remediation site: the number, ranking and {inan-
cial strength of other responsible parties (PRPs); the statas of the
proccedings, inchuling varions setfement agreements, consent
decrees or counrt arders; allocations of volumetric waste contributions
and allocations of relative responsibility among PRPs developed by
regulitory agencies and by private pardes; reinediation cost estimates
prepared by governmental anthorities or private technical consuli-
ants: and the Company's historical experience in negotiating and
settling disputes with respect to sinilar sites — and such estimates may
prove 1o be inacowrate, The impact of material cost inercases eonld
be more signilicant than anticipated. as it is difficult 1o predict with
any accrney whether raw material, energy and other input costs

will stabilize or continue 1o increase, since such costs e impacted
b multiple economic, political and other factors omside of the
Company’s control, Higher than anticipated material cost increases,
competitive proamotional aciivity ot pricing or promotional demaids

fromn retailer customers, could limit the elfectiveness of implemnenied

price increases and product costsavings in furare periods,
Adjustments (o accruals B promotional programs and calcubations
of impaivment of long-lived asses may be more signiftcant than ntic-
ipated. The impact of decreases v the expected rewrns from pen-
sion assets may have a greater tum anticipated impact on pension
expenses, Additional risks aod ancertainties brclade those detailed

fresn time o thae in the Company’s publicly filed documents,
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Statement of Earnings Data
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003(a}
Net sales $3,365.1 $3,076.9 $2.989.8 $2,812.7 $2.2325
Depreciation and amartization 115.0 117.5 116.3 15.8 83.2
Earnings before income taxes (b) 434.2 356.6 388.7 347.8 227.3
Income taxes 112.8 95.7 108.0 86.8 G328
Net earnings (c} 321.4 260.8 280.7 261.0 163.5
Earnings per share:

Basic S 567 4.26 3.95 S 324 $ 190

Diluted 5 551 4,14 3.82 $ 313 $ 185
Average shares outstanding:

Basic 56.7 61.2 71.0 80.6 85.9

Diluted 58.3 631 73.5 83.4 88.2
Balance Sheet Data
SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 2008 2005 2004 2003(a)
Working capital $ 8885 % 7082 $ 626.4 $ 469.2 $ 5160
Property, plant and equipment, net 649.9 659.9 682.5 705.6 701.2
Total assets 3,553.0 3,1328 2,8738 2,931.7 27473
Long-term debt 1,372.0 1,625.0 1,295.0 1.059.6 91386
{a) Schick-Witkinson Sword was acquired March 28, 2003
(b) Earnings before income taxes were {reduced)/increased due to the following items:
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Pravisions for restructuring and relatec costs S (18.2) $ (37.4) $ 5.0 $ {59 S 0.2
Foreign pension charge - (4.5) - - -
Special termination benefits - - - (15.2) -
Acquisition Inventory valuation - - - - 89.7}
Early debt payeff - - - - {20.0)
Gain on sale of property - - - - 5.7
Intellectual preperty rights income - - - 1.5 85
Total S (18.2) $ 4.9 $ 57 & (189 $ 195.7)
(€} Net earnings were freguced) increased due to the following items.
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 20, 2007 2008 2005 2004 2003
Provisions for restructuring and relatec costs, net of tax S {(12.2) $ (249 S @0 5 (38 5 -
Foreign pension charge, net of tax - 3.7 - - -
Special termination benefits, net of tax - - - (9.6) -
Acquisition inventory valuation, net of tax - - - -~ (58.3)
Early debt payoff, net of tax - - - - (12.4)
Gain on sale of property, net of tax - - - - 5.7
Tax benefits recognized related to prior years' losses 4.3 5.7 14.7 16.2 12.2
Adjustments to prior years' tax accruals 7.9 109 10.6 85 7.0
Deferred tax benefit due to statutory rate change 9.7 - - - -
Repatriation under the American Jabs Creation Act - - 9.0 - -
Intellectual property rights income, net of tax - - - 0.9 5.2
Total $ 8.7 $ 2.0 $ 126 $ 122 $ (408)
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Responsibility for Financial Statements

The preparation and integrite of the finanaial stnements of
Encrgizer Holdings, Tnc. (the Company) are the responsibility of its
nunagement. These statements have been prepared in conformance
with generally accepted accounting principles in the United Stuites of

America, and in the opinion of manggement, fairly present the

Company’s financial position, results of operations and cash flows.
The Company maintains accounting aned internal control
swstens, which it believes are adequate to provide reasonable assur-

ance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthoerized use

or disposition and that the financial records are reliable for prepae-

ing fimancial statements. The selection and raining ol qualified per-

sonnel. the establishment and communication of acceunting and

acdministrative policies and procedures, aned an extensive program of

iternal audits are importnt elements ol these control systems,

The report of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLE, independent regis-
tered public accounting irm, on their mudins of the accompanving
lingmcial statements is shown below. This report states that the mudits
were made inaccordance with the standards of the Pablic Company
Accounting Oversight Board (Uniwed States). These standards
include a study and evalition of imernal control for the purpose off
establishing a hasis for reliance thereon relative 1o the scope of their
audlits of the financial statements,

The Board of Direcuns, througly its Audit Committee consisting
solely of non-namagement divectors, meets periodically with nanage-
ment, internal audit and the independent auditors w discuss andic

awcd financial reporting matters. To assure independence,

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP has divect aceess 10 the Audit

Committee.
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Management's Report on Internal Control over
Financial Reporting

The management of the Company is responsible for establishing
and maintaining internak conrol over financial reporting. The
Company’s internal control over linancial reporting is o process
designed o provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliabiliey
of tinancial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
i accordance with generally aceeped accounting prineiples for
external purposes. The Company’s internal control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that: (i) pertain
10 the maintemance of records 1that, in reasonable deil, accurately
anel fairly reflect the ransactions and dispositions of the assets of
the Company; (i) pronide reasonable assurance that transactions are

recorded as necessary o pennit preparation of financil stitements

i accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the Company are heiug made onby
in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of
the Compiny; and (iil) provide reasonable assurance regurding pre-

101, use, O

vention or imely detection of unauthorized acqui
disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect
on the inancial sttemenss, Internal control over financial reporting,
becuuse of its inherent limitations, may not prevent or detect mis-
statements, Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to
future periods are subject o the risk that comtrols may beceme

s of change i conditions, or that the degree

itaclequate becaus
of comnpliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Management comducted an assessmens of the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over linancial reporting hased on the
fraunework set forth in Internal Control — hntegrated Framaework,
issued by the Commitiee of Sponsoring Organiziions of the
Treadway Commission, Based on the Company's assessment, manage-
ment has concluded that internal control over financial reporting as
ol September Y. 2007 was effective. The Company’s internal control
over [iancial reporting as of September 36, 2007 has been audited
by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public

accoumting firm, as stated in their report that appears hercin.
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Report of Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm

Ty the Shareholders and Board of Divectors

o
=)

of Energizer Holdings, Inc.:

I our opinion, the accompanying consolidated halance sheets and

the related consolidaed statements of earnings and comprehensive

income, of cash tlows and of shareholders equity present fairly, in all

material respects, the financial position of Energizer Holdings, Inc.

and its subsidiaries at September 30, 2007 and 2606 and the results of

their operations and their cash flows for each of the three vears in
the penod ended Seprember 30, 2007 in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also in
ot opinion, the Company maintained, in abl material respects, effec-
tive internal control over financial reporting as of September 30,
2007, based on criteria established n fternal Control — Integvated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission (COS0). The Compan's management is
responsible for these financial statements, for maimaining effective
internal control over fincial reporting wid for its assessment of the
cifectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in
the accompanying Managements Report on Internal Control over
Financial Reporting. Owr responsibility is 10 express opinions on
these financial starements and on the Company’s internal conurol
over financial reporting hased on our integrated audits. We con-
ducted our audits in accordance with the stancdards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United Suites). Those stan-
dards require that we plan and perform the audis o obtain reason-
able assurance about whether the financial stateineuts are free of
miterial misstatement and whether effective internal control over

financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our

andits of the finuncial statements included examining, on a test ba
evidence supporting the amonnts and disclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the swccounting principles used and significant
estinntes made by management, and evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation, Our andit of imernal control over financial
reporting included obraining an understanding of internal control
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that aomaterial weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effective-
ness of internal control Based on the assessed risk. Our andits also
included performing such other procedures as we considered neces-
sy i the circumstances, We believe that our audits provide a rea-

sonable basis for vur opinions.
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As discussed in Note B 1o the consolidated financial statenments,
the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Stanchurd
No. 158, Emplevers” Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other
Postretivement Plans — an Amendment to FASE Statements No. 87, 88, 106,
and 132(R), as of September 30, 2007,

A company’s internal control over Anuncial reporting is a process
designed o provide reasonable assurance regrarding the reliability of
[inancial reporting and the preparation of inancial statements for

external purpaoses in accordance with generully accepted accounting

principles. A company’s internal control over linancial reporting
includes those policies and procedures than (i) pertain o the mainte-
nance of records that, in reasonable dewil, accurately and fairly
reflect the timsactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(i} provide reasonable assurance that pansactions are recorded as
Hecessary to permit preparation of financial siatements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, md that receipts and
expenditures of the company wre being made only in accordance
with authorizations of management and directors of the company:
and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of’
the company’s assets that coudd have a material vffect on the financial
stalements.

Because of its inherent limitations, intermal control over financial
reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements, Also, projections
of any evaluation of cffectiveness to future periods are subject w the
risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in con-
ditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or proce-

dures may deteriorate,

/Zwﬁuo 41’7\‘15 LLf

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
St. Louis, Missouri
November 29, 2007
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Consolidated Statements of Earnings and Comprehensive Income

(Cokiars in mufions, except per share data)

Statermnent of Earnings

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30. 2007 2006 2005
Net sales $3,365.1 $3,076.9 $2,989.8
Cost of products sold 1,760.4 1,596.1 1,512.1
Gross profit 1.604.7 1.480.8 3.477.7
Selling. general and administrative expense 627.9 601.9 581.4
Advertising and promotion expense 395.2 368.9 387.6
Research and development expense 70.7 74.2 699
Interest expense 91.2 779 52.4
Other financing (incomeXexpense, net (14.5) 1.3 2.3
Earnings before income taxes 434.2 356.6 3887
Income taxes 112.8 95.7 108.0
Net earnings $ 3214 $ 2609 $ 280.7
Earnings Per Share

Basic net earnings per share $ 567 S 428 $ 3.95

Diluted net earmings per share s 55 § 414 $ 382
Statement of Comprehensive Incorme
Net earnings $ 3214 S 260.9 $ 280.7
Other comprehensive income, net of tax

Foreign currency transtation adjustments 739 29.4 (11.3)

Minimum pension liability change, net of tax of $(8.9) in 2007, $(1.3) in 2006 and $9.2 in 2005 20.5 1.7 (7.1

Deferred 1085 on hedging activity, net of tax of $4.7 in 2007 (10.6) - -
Comprehensive incame 5 405.2 $ 2920 $ 2523

The ahove firancial statements should be read in conjunction with the Nates to Consofidated Financaf Statements.
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SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 2006
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents S 3632 § 1343
Trade receivables, net 788.3 699.6
Inventories 582.3 553.9
Other current assets 277.6 247.3
Total current assets 2011.4 1,635.1
Property, plant and equipment, net 649.9 659.9
Goodwill 380.1 364.5
Cther intangible assels 3104 308.7
Crher assets 201.2 166.4
Total $ 3,553.0 $3,1328
Liabilities and Shareholders Equity
Current liabilities
Current maturities of long-term debt $ 2100 $ 850
Notes payable 43.0 63.6
Accounts payable 255.6 246.6
Qther current liabilties _fG‘l 4.3 531.7
Total current liabilities 1.122.9 926.9
Long-term debt 1,372.0 1,625.0
Other liabilities 404.2 368.3
Shareholkders equity
Preferred stock, $.01 par value, none outstanding - -
Common stock, $,.01 par value, issued 97,083,682 at 2007 and 2006, respectively 1.0 1.0
Additional paid-in capital 999.0 950.2
Retained earnings 1,362.7 1.073.2
Cornmon stock in treasury, at cosl, 39,772,001 shares at 2007 and 40,410,791 shares at 2006 (1,755.6) (1.754.2)
Accurnulated other comprehensive income/{loss) 46.8 (57.8)
Total shareholders equity G633.9 2124
Total $ 3.553.0 $3.13286

The above lnanciat Statement should bae read in conjunchion with the Notes 1o Consolidtaled Financial Statements
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
{Doflars i rifions)

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMEER 30, 2007 2006 2005

Cash Flow from QOperations

Net earnings $321.4 $260.5 £280.7

Adjustments 1o reconcile net earnings to net cash flow from operations:

Depreciation and amortization 115.0 117.5 116.3

Deferred income taxes (28.6) 233 (15.8)

Other non-cash charges 41.8 254 14.9

Otber. net 7.7 1.0 48
Operating cash flow betore changes in working capital 457.3 34915 401 .1

Changes in assets and fiabilties used in operations:

Increase in accounts receivable, net (41.6) (15.0) (46.0)
Increase in inventories (7.1} (54.2) (30.3)
{Increase}/decrease in other current assets 5.9 58 (10.8
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable 4.2 1.5 (10.4)
Increase/(decrease} in olher current liabilities 26.6 334 {7.7)

Net cash flow from operations 4453 373.0 295.9

Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Capital expenditures {88.6) 94.9 {103.0
Proceeds from sale of assets 36 6.6 54
Invasiment in prepaid share options - 19.6) -
Other. net 2.7 (7.7) 0.5
Net cash used by investing activities 82.3) (115.8) 97.1}

Cash Flow fram Financing Activities

Cash proceads from issuance of debt with original maturities greater than 80 days - 497.8 621.0
Cash payments on debt with original maturities greater than 90 days (10.0) (150 {430.00

Net decrease in debt with original matunties of 90 days or less {146.3) {123.2) (10.4)
Common stock purchased {53.0) 1600.7) 461.2)
Proceeds from issuance of common stack 357 21.4 39.7
Excess tax benefits from share-based payments 36.2 8.2 209
Other - - (1.3)

Net cash used by financing activilies (137.4) 211.5) (221.3)

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 33 3.9 2.1)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2289 498 (24.6)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 134.3 84.5 109.1
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $363.2 $134.3 $ 845

The above financial statement should Be read in conjunchion with the Notes to Consolidated Financial Staiements.
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Consolidated Statements of Shareholders Equity
{Dokars i mikans, shares i thousanas}

DOLLARS SHARES
2007 2006 2005 2007 2008 2005
Common s1ock:
Balance at beginning of year 1.0 1.0 1.0 97,084 97,084 97,049
Activity under stock plans - - - - - 35
Ending balance 1.0 1.0 1.0 97,084 97,084 97,084
Additional paid-in capital:
Balance at beginning of year 950.2 929.6 898.8
Activity under stock plans 48.8 206 30.8
Ending balance 999.0 950.2 9286
Retainec earnings:
Balance at beginning of year 1,073.2 832.7 585.7
Net earnings 3214 260.9 2807
Activity under stock plans (31.9) {20.4) {33.7)
Ending talance 1,362.7 1,073.2 8327
Common stock in treasury:
Balance al beginning of year (1,754.2) (1,193.9) {814.8) {40,410) (30,044) (24,146
Treasury sliock purchased {53.0} {600.7) (457 .4) (783) (11,331) 8.114)
Activity under stock plans 51,6 4a0.4 78.3 1.421 965 2.216
Ending balance {1.755.6) (1.754.2) (1.193.9) 139,772) {40.410) (30,044)
Accumulatec other comprehensive income/ {loss):
Cumulative translation adjustment:
Balance at beginning of year (26.4) {55.8) {44.5)
Foreign currency translation
adjustment 73.9 29.4 {11.3)
Ending balance 47.5 (26.4) {55.8)
Pension liability:
Balance at beginning of year {31.4} (33.1) (16.0)
Minimum pension adjustment 20.5 1.7 nr.1ny
Adjustment to indially apply
SFAS 158 208 - -
Encing balance, net of tax of
$9.8 in 2007, $15.0in 2006
and $16.2 in 2005 9.9 31.4) (33.1)
Deferred loss on hedging activity:
Balance at beginning of year - - -
Activity {10.6) - -
Ending balance, net of tax (10.6) - -
Total accumulated other
comprehensive incomed{loss) 46.8 {57.8) {88.9)
Total shareholders equity $ 6539 $ 2124 S 4805

The above #nancial slalement should bea read in conjunction with the Notes to Consolidated Financial Staterments
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
{Dokiars i mitions, oxcept per share and porcentage data)

1. Basis of Presentation
Preparation of the financial sttements in conformity with generally
5. (GAAP) requires

Energizer Holdings, Inc. and its subsidiaries (the Company) 1o

accepted accounting principles in the U

make estinkiues and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and Babilitics, disclosure of comtingent asscts and liabilities
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses. Onan ongo-
ing basis, the Company evaluates its estimanes, including those
related W customer progruns and incentives, product returns, bad
debts, mventories, intangible and othier long-lived assets, income
taxes. [inancing, pensions and other postretirement benefits, con-
tingencies and acquisiions. Actual results could dilfer from

those estinnates.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The Company's significamnt accounting policies, which conforn o
GAAP and are applicd on i consistent basis among all years pre-

sented, except as indicated, are described below.

Principles of Consolidation The financial statements inchude the
accounts of the Company and its majority-owned subsidiaries, All
significant inlereompany transactions are eliminated. Invesonenis
in affiliated companies, 20% through B0% owned, are carried

al equity.

Foreign Currency Translation Financial statements of Toreign
operations where the local currency is the functonal convency e
wranslated using end-ofperiod exchange rates for assets and liabili-
ties, and average exchange rates during the period for resulis of
operations. Related translation adjustinenus are reported as a com-
ponent within accumulated other comprehensive income in the

shareholders equity section of the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

For loreign operations where the ULS. dollar is the fimetional
currency and for countries that are considered highly inflmionary,
ranslation practices differ in that inventories, properties. accumu-
lated depreciation and depreciation expense are translated at
historical rates of exchange, auid relatedd anstation adjustments
are included in carnings. Gains and losses from foreign carvency

tansactions are generallv included in carnings.

Financial Instruments and Derivative Securities The Company
uses Hinancial instruments, from time o 1ime, inthe management
of foreign currency, interest vawe and other visks that are inherem
10 ity business operations. Such instuments are not held or issued
for trading purposes.

Foreign exchange (F/X) instuments, including curreney fon-
wards, purchused options and zevo-cost option collars, are used
primarily 1o reduce tansaction exposures mul. 1o a lesser exient,
w0 manage other tanskition exposures. F/X instruments vsed are
selected based on their risk reduection attributes and the related
market conditions. The Company also holds o contract with an
cmbedded derivative instrument o mitigate the risk of its deferred
compensation liabilities, as discussed further in Note 15 The

Company has not designated these financial instruments as hedges
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for accounting purposes in the three vears ended
September 30, 2007.

The Company nses raw materials that are subject 10 price volatil-
it The Company uses hedging instraments as it desires 1o reduce
exposure W variability in cash flows associnted with future par-
chases of zine or other commaodities. For further discussion of such

insirnents, see Note 13

Cash Equivalents For purposes of the Consolidated Statements of
Cash Flows., cash cquividents are all considered o be highly liquid

investments with s matwrity of three months or less when purchased.

Accounts Receivable Valuation Accounts receivable e stved at
their net realizable salue, The allowance Tor douhiful accounts
reflects the Company™s hest estimae of probable losses inhevent in
the receivables portfulio determined on the basis of historical expe-
rience, speeitic allowances for known troubled accounts and other
currently available information, Bad debt expense is included in
selling, general and administrative (SGE&A) expense in the

Consolidated Stuements of Earnings.

Inventorics Inventories are valued i the lower of cost or market,
with cost generally being determined using average cost or the first-

in, first-out (FIFCH methodd.

Capitalized Software Costs Capitilized software costs are included
in Other Assets. These costs are amortized using the siraightline
methad over periods of related benefic canging from three to seven
years. Expenditures related w capitalized software are included in
the capital expenditires caption in the Consolidated Statements

of Cash Flows.

Property, Plant and Equipment roperty, plant and equipiment
i stated at historical cost. Expenditures [or new Facilities and

expenditures that substantially inerease the useful life of property.

including intevest during construction, are capitalized and
reported in the capital expenditures caption in the Consolidated
Stements of Cash Flows, Maintenance, repairs and minor
renewals are expensed as incurred. When property is retired or
otherwise disposed of. the related cost and accumulaed deprecia-
tion are removed from the accounts, and gains or losses on the
disposition are reflected in earmings. Depreciation s generally
provided on the snaighiline hasis by charges to costs or expenses

at rates based on estimated useful lives, Estimaned uselul lives range

from two to 25 vears for machinery and equipment and three to
S years for buildings. Depreciation expense was $104.6, §109.1

anel $111.0in 2007, 2006 and 2005, vespectively.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets Goodwill and indefinite-
lived intangibles are not amortized. bun are evaluated annually for
impairment as part of the Company’s annual business planning
evele in the fourth quarter. The Gair valoe of each reperting unit is
estimated wsing a discounted cash low method. Intangible assets
with linite lives are amonized on a straight-line basis over expected
lives of five to 15 vears. Such intangibles are also evaluated for

imprairment anmially.
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Impairment of Long-Lived Assets The Company reviews long-
lived assets, other than geodwill and other intungible assets for
impairment, when events or changes in business circumstances
indicate that the remaining useful life may warrant revision or thal
the carrying amount of the longtived asset may not be fully recov-
erable. The Company perfonms undiscounted cash flow analyses o
determine if impairment exists. I impairment is determined to
exist, any related impainnent loss is caloudated based on fair value.
Impairment Josses on assets o he disposed of, i’ any, are based on

the estimated proceeds to be received, less cost of disposal.

Revenue Recognition The Company’s revenuc is trom the sale of
its products. Revenue is recogmized when title, ownership and risk
of Joss passes 10 the customer. Discounts are offered o customers
lor early payment and an estinuute of such discounts is recorded as
a reduction of net sales in the same period as the sale, Our stan-
dard sales terms are final and returns or exclianges are not permi-
ted unless a special exception is made; reserves are established and
recorded in cases where the yight of return dowes exist for a particu-
lar sale. The Company offers a variety of programs, primarily to its
retil customers, designed o promote sales of its products, Such
programs require periodic payments and allowances based on esti-
mated results of specific programs and are recorded as a reduction
to net sales, The Company acerues at the time of sale the estimaled
otal pavments and allowances associated with cach wransaction.
Additonally, the Company offers programs directly o consumenrs
1o promote the sale of its produets. Promotions which reduce the
ultimate consumer sale prices are recorded as a reduction of net
sales at the time the promotional oiler is made, generally using
estimated redernption and participation levels. Taxes we colleat on
behalt of governmental anthorities, which are generally included in
the price to the customer, are also recorded as a reduction of net
sates, The Company continually assesses the adequacy of accruals
for customer and consumer promotional progriun costs not yet
paid. To the extent total prograum payments dilTer from estinates,
adjustments may be necessary. Historically, these adjustments have

not heen material,

Advertising and Promotion Costs The Company advertises and
promotes its products through national and regional media and

expenses such activities in the year incurred.

Reclassifications Certain reclassifications have been made 10
the prior vear financial statements 1o conform to the current

prcseuuﬂiuu.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements [n 2006, the FASE
issucd FASB Interpretation No. 48, "Accounting for Uncertainty in
[ncome Taxes™ (FIN 48). FIN 48 clarifies the treatment of uncer-
tain income tax positions in accordance with FASB Statement No.
109, "Accounting {or Income Taxes.™ The interpretation prescribes
a recognition threshold and measurement anribute for the finan-
cial statement recognition and measurement of 1 tax position

takenn or expected 1o be taken in a s return, [ also provides

guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and penaliies.
accounting for taxes in interim periods and disclosure require-
ments. FIN 48 is effective for the Company on October 1, 2007,
The Company does not expect the impact of adoption of FIN 48
o be material.

On Ocober 1, 2006, the Company adopted SFAS 155,
“Accounting for Certain Hybrid Financial Instraments, an amend-
ment of FASB Statement No. 133 and 1407 (SFAS 155), SFAS 155
permits, among other things, an election 10 record hybrid financial
mstruments that contain an embedded derivative at fir value
rather than bifurcating the: mstrument for RCCONNNYG PUIPOSES, as
required by previous standards, The Company has elected such
treatment lor its prepaid share opton. See Note 13 for further
information on financial instruments.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, "Fair Value
Measurements”™ {(SFAS 157}, which addresses how Fair value should
be measured when required tor recognition or disclosure purposes
under GAAP. Tt also establishes a fair value hierarchy and will
require expanded disclosures on fair value measurements, On
November 14, 2007, the FASB voted 1o partially defer the require-
ments of this guidance for one year making SFAS 157 effeciive for
the Company an October 1, 2009, The Compuny has not com-
pleted assessing the impact that SFAS 157 will have on (he
Consolidiied Financial Statements,

[n Scptember 2006, the FASB issucd SFAS No. 158, "Employers’
Aceounting for Defined Benelit Pension and Other Postretirement
Plans — anamendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and
132(R)" (SFAS 158). SFAS 158 requires emplover to recognize the
overfunded or underfunded staws of a defined benefit pension
and a postretirement plan as an asset or liability in its balance
sheet. The changes in funded status in that vear are recuired o be
reporied through other comprehensive mcome. SFAS 158 was
adopied by the Company on September 30, 2007. For [ull disclo-
siwe of SFAS 158, see Note 8. The table below reflects the impact of
adopting the provisions o’ SFAS 158 on the: components of the
Consolidiled Balance Sheet as of Seprember 30, 2007:

Befare Aftar
Application of SFAS 158 Application of

SFAS 158  Adjustments SFAS 158
Other Assets $ 1947 $ 65 $ 2012
Total Assets 3.546.5 6.5 3,653.0
Other Current Liabiities 608.9 5.4 614.3
Other Liabflities* 423.9 (19.7) 404.2
Tolal Liabilities 2.913.4 {14.3) 2.899.1
Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income 26.0 20.8 46.8
Total Shareholder's Equity 6331 20.8 653.9
Total Liabilities and
Shareholder's Equity $3,546.5 36,5 $3,553.0

“includes Deferred income Tax liabiily adjustment of $15 7.
No other new accounting pronouncement issued or eflective
during the fiscal vear has had or is expected o have a material

impact on the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Notes to Consoclidated Financial Statements
Dotars in milions, excent per share and percentage data)

A Goodwill and Intangible Assets

and Amortization

The Company bas allocated goodwill and other intangible assets 1o
individual countries or arcas for batery businesses, The batery
business intangible assets are comprised of trademarks primarily
velated to the fnergizer brand. These imangible assets are deemed
indefinite-lived.

The Company allocated goodwill, indefinite-lived trademarks
and other intangible assets o the SWS business at acquisition, The
uther intangible assets include tdenarks, tradenames, technology,
patents and customer-related assets with lives tanging [rom
five 1o 1A vears.

Goodwill and intangible asseis decmed to have an indefinite life

are not amortized, but reviewed annually for impairment of value,

2607 Annual Report

The Company monitors changing business conelitions, which imay
indicate that the remaining useful life of goodwill and other intan-
gible assels mav warrn revision or canying amounts may require
adjustment, As part of'its business planning cvcle, the Company
performed its annual impairment test in the foarth quarer of fiscal
2007, 2006 and 2005, hnpairment testing of the Company’s report-
ing units was performed at the area level (North America. Europe.
Asian Pucific and Latin America) within cach reportng segment of
the Company, The fair value of each arca reporting unit was esti-
mated using a discounted cash flow method, No adjustiments or
impairments were deemed necessary.

The tollowing table represents the carrving amount of goodwill

by segment at September 30, 2007:

North Americi Internatienal Razors and
Battery Battery Elades Total
Balance at October 1, 2006 $24.7 S145 8325.3 $364.5
Curnulative translation adjustrment - 0.9 14.7 15.6
Balance at September 30, 2007 8247 515.4 $340.0 $380.1

The Company has indefinite-lived and amordzable intangibles. The Company had indefinite-lived wademarks and iradenames of $277.4

at September 30, 2007 and $265.8 a1 Scptember 30, 2006, Changes in indefinite-lived wrademarks and vadenames are currency related. The

Company also had pension refated intangibles of $-4 m September 30, 2006,

Total amortizable intangible assets a September 30, 2007 are as follows:

Gross
Carrving Accumulated
Amount Amortization Net
Tradenames S11.7 S (5.9 $ 82
Technalogy and patents 36.5 115.6) 209
Customer-retated 10.4 (5.0) 54
Total amortizable intangble assets $58.6 $(26.1) £32.5

Amortization expense for imangible assers wotaled $5.9 for the current vear. Estimated amortization expense for amortized intangible

assets for the vears ended September 30, 2008 through 2010 is approximaiely $5.6, and $5.1 for the vears encled Sepiember 50, 2011

and 2012,
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4, Income Taxes
The provisions for income taxes consisted of the following for the

vears ended September 30:

2007 Annual Report

The source of pre-tax earnings was:

2007 2006 2005
2007 2006 2005 United States $183.1 $160.2 $150.6
Currently payable: Foraign 2511 186.4 238.1
United States - Federal § 864 § 837 § 74 Pre-tax earnings $434.2 $356.6 $388.7
State 5.0 3.6 53
Foreign 50.0 51.7 46.9
Total current 141.4 119.0 123.6
Deferred:
United States — Federal (25.3) {15.8) (12.3)
State 0.9) 0.5) {1.79)
Foreign (2.4 6.9 {1.6)
Total deferred (28.8) 23.3) 15.6)
Provigion far income taxes $112.8 $ 95.7 $108.0
A reconcilistion of income taxes with the amouns computed at the statutory federal rate follows:
2007 2008 2005
Computed tax at federal statutory rate $152.0 35.0% 81248  35.0% $136.0 35.0%
State income taxes. net of federal tax benetit 27 0.6 1.9 0.5 3.0 0.8
Foreign tax less than the federal rate (22.7) {5.2) (17.7) 5.0 127 .4) 7.00
Fareign benefits recognized related to
pricr years’ losses 4.3} 1.0 5.7 (1.6) {14.7} (3.8}
Adjustments to prior years' tax accruals (7.9} {1.8) (108 (3.1) {10.6} 2.7}
Deferred tax benefits due to statutory rate change 8.7 2.2 - - - -
Taxes on repatriation of foreign earnings
under provisions of the American Jobs
Creation Act - - - ~ 9.0 2.3
Other taxes on repatriation of foreign earnings 1.3 2.6 4.5 1.3 9.4 2.4
Non-taxable prepaid share option {PSO) 8.1) (1.9 3.8 (1.0) (1.9) Q.5)
Other, net 0.5) {0.1) 2.6 0.7 5.2 1.3
Tetal 5112.8 26.0% $ 957 26.8% $108.0 27.8%

Inn 2007, 2006 and 2005, $4.3, $5.7 and S1-L7. respectively, of tax
benelits related to prior vears” losses were recorded. These benefis
reliated 1o foreign countries where our subsidiay subsequently
hegan to generate carnings and could reasonably expect future
profitability suflicient to utilize tax loss caryforwards prior to expi-
ration. Improved profitabilicy in Mexico in 2007 and 2006 and
Germany in 2005 account for the bulk of the henefits recognized,

Adjustinents were recorded in each of the three vears to revise
previously recorded tax accruals o reflect reflinement of tax attrib-
ute estiniales o amounts in filed retarns, settddement of tax andits

and changes in estimates related to uncertain tax positions in a

number of jurisdicdons. Such adjustments decreased the income
tax provision by $7.9, $10.9 and $10.6 in 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively. Also, legislation enacted in Germany reduced the wx
rate applicable to the Company’s subsidiarics in Germany for fiscal
2008 and beyond. Thus an adjustment of $9.7 was made to reduce
deferved wax liabilities in fiseal 2007,

The American Johs Creation Act of 2004 {A]CA) introduced a
special one-time dividends received deduction on the repatriation
of cerain foreign earnings to a U.S. wixpayer. The repatriaton of
foreign carnings following the enteria prescribed by the AJCA gen-

erated an additional tax provision in fiscal 2005 of $9.0.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Doftars n mitons, except per share and parcentage daia)

The deferred 1ax assets and deferred ax labilities recorded on
the balance sheet as of September 30 are as follows and include

current and NONCTent Mnotnts;

2007 2006

Deferred tax liabilities:
Depreciation and property differences 5 (M0 3 {80.8)
Intangible assets (39.4) 141.7)
Pensicn plans [33.8) 130.9)
Other tax babilities (9.8) 32
Gross defarred tax liabilities {154.00 (156.8)

Deferred tax assets:

Accrued liabilities 733 63.9
Deferred and stock-related compensation 92.3 69.7
Tax loss carryforwards and tax credits 21.2 24.0
Intangible assets 353 36.7
Postretirement benefits other than pensions 10.6 28.4
Inventory differences 19.4 18.9
Other tax assets 19.0 31.2
Gross deferred tax assets 2711 272.8
Valuation allowance {4.9) (10.7)
Net deterred tax assets $112.2 $105.5
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There were no material tax loss carryforwards thae expired in
2007, Fulure expirations of ax loss carryforwards and tax credits,
il not utilized, are as follows: 2008, $1.0; 20048, $0.6; 2010, $0.4:
200 E, §1.5; 2012, 50.2; therealier or no expiration, $17.5. The
valuadion allowanee is attributed o 1ax loss carrvforwards and ax
credits outside the US. The valuation allowance decreased $5.8 in
2007 primarily due 10 projected wilization in futre vears that are
decimed more likelv than not,

At September 30, 2007, approxinuuely 5510 of foreign sub-
siciary retaimed carnings was consicleree indefinitely invested in
those businesses. ULS. income taxes have not been provided for
such carnings, It is not praciicable to determine the amount of

unrecognized deferred tax liabilities associated with such earnings.

5. Restructuring and Related Charges

The Company continually reviews its hattery and razors and
hlades business maodels o identify potential improvements and
cost suvings. A project commaenced in 20006 to immprove efective-
ness and reduce costs of European packaging, warehouse and
distribution activities, including the closing of the Company’s
batery puckaging facilie in Caudebec, Frimcee, as well as consoli-
dation of warchouse and distribution activities. The Company also
commenced a project to integrate battery and razors and blades
commercial management, sales and administrative functions in
certain European countries. In 2007, 1ot pre-tax charges related
10 these projects were $18.2, and include exit costs of $7.0 which
represent emplovee severance atd contract terminations, as well
as S11.2 for other non-exit costs related 1o the project. Virwally
all of these costs i 2007 were recorded in SGEA expense, Towl
pre-tas charges related to the projects were $37.4 in fiscal 2006,
and include exit costs of $28.2 which represented emplovee sever-
ance, contrct terminations and other exit costs, as well as §9.2
for othier costs related o the project. In 2006, $8.0 of these costs
wore reflecied in cost of products sold and $99.4 on SG&A

G:,\'p(,‘!l“i(,‘.

Total Contract Other Exit Total Exit
Severance Terminations Cosis Costs
Provisicn $23.0 $3.1 $21 $282
Activity 5.6 0.1) 0.4) 6.1)
Balance at September 30, 2006 $17.4 $3.0 $17 $22.1
Provision 5.7 1.3 - 7.0
Activity 118.1) 2.9) {1.7) (22.7}
Balance at September 30, 2007 S 50 S1.4 - S 6.4
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6. Earmings Per Share
For each period presented below, basic earmings per share is based
on the average number of shares outstanding during the period.
Diluted carnings per share is based on the average number of
shares used for the basic earnings per share caleulation, adjusted
for the dilutive effect ol stock options and restricted stock
ceuivalenis.

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and

diluted earnings per shave (shares in millions):

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 2006 2005
Numerator:
Net earnings for basic and
dilutive earnings per share $321.4 %2609 $280.7
Denominator:
Waighted-average shares - basic 56.7 §1.2 710
Effect of dilutive securities
Stock aptions 1.0 1.4 1.7
Restricted stock equivalents 0.6 0.5 08
Tetal dilutive securities 16 1.9 25
Waightad-average shares - diluted 58.3 B3.1 3.5
Basic net earnings per share $ 567 $ 426 § 395
Diluted net earnings per share $ 55 § 414 § 382

7. Sharc-Based Pavinents

The Company’s 2000 Incentive Stock Plan (the Plan) was adopted
by the Bourd of Dircetors in March 2000 and approved by share-
holders, with respect 1o funwe awards which may be granted under
the Plan, at the 2001 Annual Meedng of Sharcholders. Under the
Plan, awards of restricted stock, restricted stock equivalents or
options to purchase the Company's common stock (ENR stock)
mayv be granied 1o direciors, officers and key employees, A nuaxi-
mum of 164 million shares of ENR stock was approved to be issued
under the Plan. A September 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respec-
tively, there were 3.3 million, 3.7 million and 3.8 million shares
available for fulare awards.

Options under the Plan have been granted at the market price
on the grant date and generally vest ratably over three o five years.
These awards have a maximum term of 10 vears. Restricted stock
and restricied stock equivalent awareds may also be granted under
the Plan. Under the terms of the Plan, option shares and prices,
and restricted stock and stock equivalent awards, are adjusted in
conjunction with stock splits and other recapitalizations so that the
holder is in the sume cconomic position before and after these
equity transactions,

The Company permits deferrals of bonus and salary and for
directors, retainers and fecs, under the terms of s Deferred
Compensation Plan, Under this plan, emplovees or directors defer-
ring amounts into the Energizer Common Stock Unit Fund are

credited with a number of stock equivalents based on the fair value

___
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of ENR stock at the time of deferral. In addition, the participants
were credited with an additional number of stock equivalents,
equal 10 25% for emplovees and 33-1/3% for directors, of the
amount deferred. This additional company match vests immedi-
ately for directors and three years from the date of inital crediting
for employees, Amounts deferred into the Energizer Common
Stock Unit Fund, and vested company matching deferrals, may be
transferred to other investment options offered under the plan
after specified restriction periods. At the time of termination of
employment, or for directors, at the time of termination of service
on the Board, or at such other time for distribution shich may be
elected in advance by the participant, the number of equivalents
then credited 1o the panticipant’s account is determined and then
an amount in cash equal to the tair value of an equivalent number
of shares of ENR stock is paid to the participant. This plan is
reflected in Other Liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

On October 1, 2005, the Company adopted SFAS No. 123
{revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment” (SFAS 123R), using the
“modified retrospective” method. Accordingly, prior vear results
have been adjusted 10 incorporue the effects of SFAS 123R. The
impact to the Company's net carnings is consistent with the pro
forma disclosures provided in previous financial stalements. The
Statement of Cash Flows for fiscal vear 2005 was adjusted in accor
dance with SFAS 123R to reflect excess tax benefits as an inflow
from financing activities.

Beginning with new grants in fiscal 2006, the Company used the
straight-line method of recognizing compensation cost. In fiscal
vears prior to 2006, the Company used the accelerated method of
recognizing compensation costs for awards with graded vesting.
The accelerated method trented tranches of a grant as separate
awards, amortizing the compensation costs over each vesting period
within a grant,

Total compensation cost charged against income for the
Company's share-based compensation arrangements was $25.3,
$16.0 and $14.3 for the vears ended September 30, 2007, 2006 and
2005, respectively and was recorded in selling, general and adminis-
trative (SG&A) expense. The total income tax benefit recognized
in the Consolidated Staemenm of Earnings tor share-based con-
pensation arrangements was £9.2, 85.9 and $5.9 for the vears ended
September 30, 2007, 2006 and 205, respectively. Restricted stock
issuance and shares issued for stock options exercises under the
Company's share-hased compensation program are generally issued

from treasury shares.

Options As of September ), 2007, the agpregate intrinsic value of
stock options outstanding and stock aptions exercisable was $186.4
and $156.5, respectvely. The aggregate inrinsic value of stock
optiois exercised for the years eided Seplember 30, 2007, 2006
and 2005 was $107.8, $34.0 and $78.2, respectively. When valuing
new grants, Energiver uses an implied voludility, which reflects the
expected volatility for a period equal 1o the expected life of the

opticn. No new option awards were granied in the year ended

N
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September 30, 2007 or September 30, 2006, The weiy
fair value of options granted in fiscal 2005 was $15.27

This was estimated at the grant date using the Black-3

hed-average
per option.

chioles option-

pricing model with the following weighted-average assumptions:

2005
Risk-free interest rate 3.86%
Expected life of opticn 6 years
Expected volatility of ENR stock 22.2%

Expected dividend yield on ENR stock

As of September 30, 2007, there was $1.0 of total

compensation costs related o stock options granted,

wnrecognized

which will be

fully recognized during fiscal 2008. For outstading nonqualified

stock options, the weighted average remaining contractual life

is 4.3 years.
The following table summarizes nonqualified EN

activity during the current year {shares in millions):

R stock option

feighted-Average

srgiver Holdings, Tne.

Shares Exercise Price
Qutstanding on Oct. 1, 2006 3.81 $25.85
Exercised {1.54) 23.16
Cancelled 10.03) 22.52
Cutstanding on Sept. 30, 2007 2.24 27.74
Exercisable on Sept. 30, 2007 1.81 $24.43

Restricted Stock Equivalents (RSE) In October 200

5, the Board

of Directors approved two different granws of RSE. First, a grant to

key employees, included approximately 73,000 shares that vest rat-

ablv over four years. The second grant for 80.004) sha
awarded to a group of key senior executives und con
pieces: 1) 25% of the wotal restricted stock equivalen
on the third anniversary of the date of grant: 2) the
vests on the date that the Company publich reicases
its 2008 liscal vear contingent upon the Company’s

annual growth in earnings per share (CAGR) for the
period ending on Seprember 30, 2008, 1 a CAGR of
achieved, an additonal 25% of the grantvesws. The «

will vestin its entirety on the third anniversary of thd

¢S was
sists of two

ts granted vest
remainder

its earnings for
ompound
three-vear
10% is
emaining %

gramd date,

only if the Company achieves a CAGR at or above 1:'?%. with

smaller percentages of that remaining 50% vesting if the Company

achieves a CAGR between 11% and 15%. The total @

to vest is amortized over the vesting period.

ward expected

In October 2006, the Board of Dirveciors approved two grants of

RSE. First, a grant to kev emplovee:

ncluded 112,330 shares that

vest ratably over four vears. The second grant for 308,000 shares

was awarded to kev senior executives with similar performance

and vesting requirements to the RSE award granted in 2005,

as described above.
The Company records estimated expense for the

based grants based on the cumulative program-to-ds

performance-

1e CAGR for
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cach respective program unless evidence exists that a different ulti-
miate CAGR is likely 1o oceur.
The following table summarizes RSE activity during the currvent
vewr (shawes inomillions):
Weighted-Average

Grant Date

Shares Fair Valua

Nonvested RSE at Oct.1, 2006 0.53 $42.44
Granted 0.41 73.68
Vested (0.11) 4457
Cancelled 10.04) 68.52
Nonvested RSE at Sept. 30, 2007 0.78 $57.34

As of September 30, 2007, there was $28.7 of totad anrecognized
compensation costs related 1o RSE graned under the Plan, which
will he recognized over w weighted-average period of approxinutely
L1 years. The weighted-average fair value for RSE granted in 2007,
2006 and 2005 was $73.68, $52.81 und $48.090, respectivedy. The fair
alue of RSE vested in 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $9.2, §6.9
and $1.9, respectively.

In October 2007, the Company granted RSE awards 1o key
employees included approximately 283,000 shares that vest ratably
over four years, At the same time, the Company granted RSE
awards (o key senior execitives wotaling approximately 272,060
which vest as follows: 13 25% of the wotal restricred stock equivae
lents granted vest on the third anniversary of the dae of grant; 2)
the remainder vests on the date that the Company publicly releases
its earnings for its 2010 fiscal vear contingent upon the Company’s
conmpound annual growth in earmings per share (CAGR) for the
threesvear period ending on September 30, 2004, 10a CAGR of
15% is achieved. the remaining 75% of the gran vests, with smaller
percentages of the renwining 75% vesting if the Company achicves
a CAGR hetween 8% and 15%. The total award expected to vest

is amortzed over the vesting perioed.

Other Share-Based Compensation During the quarter ended
December 31, 2005, the Board of Directors approved an award for
officers of the Company, This award wotaled 196,800 share equiva-
lents and has the same features as the restricted stock award
mranted 10 senjor executives in October 2005 s discussed above,
but will be setiled in cash and mandatorily deferred until the indi-
vidual's retirement or other wrmination of employment. During
2007, 20,000 shares were forfeited leaving 176,800 nonvested shares
at Seprember 30L 2007, The total award expected 1o vest is amor-
tized over the threevear vesting peviod and the amaortized portion
is recorded . the closing miarket price of ENR stock at each period
end. As of September 30, 2007, there was $7.1 ol total unrecog:
nized compensation costs related 1o this award, The related Tability
is reflected in Onher Liabilities in the Company’s Consolidated

Batance Sheet.
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8. Pension Plans and Other

Postretitement Benefits

The Company has several defined benelit pension plans covering
substantially all of its emplovees in the U.S. and cenain emplovees
in other countries, The plans provide retirement benefits based on
vears of service and carnings.

During liscal 2006, the U.S. postretirement plan was amended
1o eliminate disability benelits for participants who become dis-
abled on or afier January 1, 2007, Simulaneously, the Company
began providing long-term disability insurance for U.S. employees.
Current disabled participints will continue to receive or accrue
henefits under the plan as of their disability date. The amendment
reduced the plan's projected henefit obligaion by $10.1.

In September 2006, the Company discoveree that one of its
non-U.S. subsidiaries had failed over several years to adjust its stawa-
tory pension accounting to US, GAAP, resulting in a cumulative
understatement of its pension liability by $4.5 at September 3,
2005. A charge of $4.5, or $8.7 afler-tax, was recorded in the fourth
quanrter of 2006 10 carrect the cumulative understatement in prior
vears, in addition 10 the recording of the 2006 additional U.S.
GAAT expense of $0.6. The Company has determined the effect
ol this error is not material w any ol its previously issued quarterly

or annwad financil sinements, including for the vear 2006.

2007 Annual Repornt

The Company also sponsors or participates in a number of
other non-U.S, pension arrangements, including various retirement
and termination benefit plans, some of which are required by local
Ly or coordinated with governmenisponsored plans, which are
not significant in the aygregate and therefore are not included in
the information presented in the following tbles,

The Company currently provides other postretirement benefits,
consisting of health care and life insurance benefits for certain
groups of retired employees, Certain retirees are eligible for a fixed
subsidy, provided by the Compiny, wward their total cost of healih
care benefits, Retiree contributions for health care benefits are
adjusted periodically 1o cover the entire increase in wotal plan costs.
Cost trenel rates no longer nuerially impact the Company's future
cost ol the plan,

As discussed in Note 2, the Company adopted SFAS 158 on
September 30, 2007, on the required prospective basis, Our
September 30, 2007 disclosure is in accordance with the
W requirementts,

We use a Septemhber 30 measurement date for our defined

benefit pension and postretivement plans,
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The following tables present the henefit obligation, |

Ifergizer Floldings, Ine. 2007 Apanal Report

lan assess and funded stas of the plims:

Pension Postretirernent
September 30, 2007 2006 2007 2006
Change 1n Projected Benefit Obligation
Benefit obligation at beginning of year 5790.9 $754.5 $51.6 5615
Service cost 299 26.3 04 0.3
Interest cost 41.3 38.4 2.8 3.3
Plan participants’ contributions 1.2 1.2 - -
Actuarial (gain)/loss {(28.8) 58 (17.6) (ne.1
Benefits paid (42.3} (36.8) (2.5) {1.6)
Plan amendments - 10.1) - -
Foreign currency exchange rate changas 23.2 1.6 0.7 0.2
Projected benefit obligation at end of year $815.4 37909 51355 %516
Change in Plan Assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $704.8 $667.4 S 24 $ 22
Aclual return on plan assets 100.0 50.1 01 0.4
Company contributions 18.2 16.2 2.0 1.4
Plan participants' contributions 1.2 1.2 4.3 6.0
Benefits paid {42.3) {36.8} (6.6 (7.6}
Foreign currency exchange rate changes 133 6.7 - -
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $795.2 $704.8 S 20 § 24
Funded status at end of year $(20.2) ${B6.1) 5(33.5) ${49.2)
Unrecognized net transition obligation n/a 1.3 nfa -
Unrecognized prior service benefit n/a 9.2) n/a {28.1)
Unrecognized net loss/(gain) n/a 16.1 nia (9.0}
Prepaid [accrued) benefit cost nfa 22.1 n/a (86.3)

The following tible presents the amounts recognized i the Consoliciued Balance Sheet and Consolidated Statement of Shareholders Equity,

Pension Postretirement
September 30, 2007 2006 2007 2006
Amounts Recogrized in tha Consoldated Balance Sheet
Non current assets 125.2 88.1 - -
Intangible asset n/a 4.4 - -
Current liabilities (6.2) - 0.9) -
Non current liabilities (139.2) 1116.8) (32.8) 86.3)
Net amount recognized S (20.2) $ (24.3) 5(33.5) $(86.3)
Amounts Recognized in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income
Net loss/(gain) 38.2 - (26.4) -
Prior service benefil (7.4) - (25.9) -
Transition cbligation 1.8 _ - _
Minimum pension - 46.4 - -
Nel amount recognized. pre-tax $ 326 3 4B.4 $(52.3) $ -
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The Company expects to contribute $14.8 1o its pension plans The acciunulated benefit obligation for defined benefit pension
and $2.5 w is other postretirement benefit plans in 2008, The plans was $727.2 and $694.5 a1 September 30, 2007 and 20086,
Company's expected future benefit payinents are as follows: respectively. The information for pension plans with an accunu

lated benelit obligation in excess of plan assets is as follows:

September 30, Pension Postretirement

Septemnber 30, 2007 2006
2008 $ 479 $ 29
2000 42.9 o8 Projected benefit obligation $200.8 $273.1
2010 a2 2.8 Accumulated benefit obligation 169.7 2282
2011 46.0 27 Fair value of plan assets 53.5 1124
2012 49.8 27
2013 10 2017 307 1 128 Pension plan assets in the U.S. plan represent 66% of asscts in

all of the Company’s defined benefit pension plans. Investment
policy fur the ULS, plan includes a mandate to diversify assets and
invest in a variety of asset classes to achieve that goal. The U.S.
plan’s asscts arc ewrrendy invested in several funds representing
most standard equity and debt security classes. The broad arget
allocations are: {4} equities, including U.S. and foreign: 64%, (b)
debt securites, including higher-quality and lower-quality U.S,
bonds: 32% and (c} other: 3%. The U.S. plan held no shares of
ENR stock at September 30, 2007. Investment objectives are sinilar

for non-U.S. pension arrangemernts, subject to local regulations.

The following table presents pension and postretirement expense: 35

Pension Postretirement

September 30, 2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 2005
Service cost $29.9 $26.3 $28.5 $04 $03 $03
Interest cost 41.3 38.4 38.2 2.8 3.3 3.2
Expecied return on plan assets (53.2) (49.8) (50.0) o1 ©.1) {0.1)
Amortization of unrecognized

prior service cost 1.1) 0.2 {Q.1) (2.2 2.2 ©.5)
Amortization of unrecognized

transition asset 0.4 0.7 0.2 - - -
Recognized net actuarial l0ss 6.9 6.2 4.7 (0.3) 0.1 ] -
Net periodic benefit cost $24.2 $218 $21.5 $0.6 $1.4 $09

Amounts expected to be amortized from accunudated other comprehensive income into net period benefit cost during the vear ending

September 30, 2008, are as follows:

September 30, Pension Postretirement
Net actuanal gain/{loss) 3.9) 2.0
Prior service cost 1.2 22
Initial net asset (obligation) 0.2 ] -
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The tollowing table presents assumptions, which refl

the above inlorniation:

Tnergizer Holdings, e, 2007 Annoal Repont

ect weighted-averages for the component plans, used in determining

Pension Postretirement
September 30. 2007 2005 2007 2006
Plan ghligations:
Discount rate 5.8% 5.3% 56.0% 5.7%
Compensation increase rate 3.9% 3.8% 3.5% 3.6%
MNet Periodic Benefit Cost:
Discount rate 5.3% 5.2% 57% 5.5%
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 8.0% B.0% 5.5% 5.5%
Compensation increase rate 3.8% 3.7% 3.6% 3.5%

The: expected retuen on plan assets was determiy
trgel allocations described below. Specifically, the e

return on debt securities (inchuding higherquality a

9. Delined Contribution Plan

The Company sponsors 4 defined contribution plan

participmion eligibility 1o substantially a0l U.S. empl
o

which extends

vees. The

Company matches 50% ol paricipants” belore-tax conuributions up

10 6% of eligible compensiwion. In addition, pardcipants can make

after-tax contributions into the plan. The participan

‘s after-tax con-

tribution of 1% of cligitle compensation is matched with a 325%

Company contribution to the participant’s pension plan account.

Amounts charged to expense duning liseal 2007, 20

6 and 2005

were $5.6, 5.4 and $5.2, respectively, and are reflected in SG&A

and cost of products sold in the Consolidated Statement

of Earnings.

1€}, Debt

Notes payable at September 30, 2007 and 2006 cons

sted of notes

payable 1o financial institutions with original maturities of less than

one year of $43.0 and $63.6, respectively, and had a

average interest rate of 6.7% and 6.0%, respectively.

veighted-

The detail of long-term debt at September 3 is as follows:

2004 2006

Private Placerment, fixed interest

rates ranging from 3.1% 10 6.2%,

due 2007 to 2016 $1,475.4 $1,485.0
Singapore Bank Syndication, multi-currency

facility, variable interest at LIBOR

+ 80 basis points, or 6.7%, due 2010 107.0 225.0
Total long-term debt. including

current maturities 1,582.0 1.710.0
Less current portion 210.0 850
Total long-tarm debt $1,37240 $1,625.0

The Company maintains total committed debt
42 140.0. of which $558.0 remained available as of
2007.

Under the terms ol the Company’s debu Facilidies,

facilities of

September 30,

the ratio of

the Compauny's indebtedness 1o its Earmings Before Interest, Taxes,

Depreciation and Amortization (EBITDA) cannotb

e greater than

cd based on histovical and expeated future returms of te various asset classes, using the
xpected return on equities (U8, and foreign combined) is 9.6%, and the expected

nd lowerquality bonds) is 51%,

4000 1, and may not remain above 3.5 to 1 for more than four
consceutive quarters. In addition, the ratio of is current vear
Earnings Before Interest and Taxes (EBIT) to total interest expense
nist exceed 3.0 to 1, Failure to comply with the above ratios or
other covenants could result in acceleration of marrity, which
could trigger cross defaults on other borrowings. The Company
believes that covenant violations resulting in acceleration of matu-
rity is unlikely. The Company's fixed rate debu is callable by the
Company, subject 1o a “make whole™ premium, which would be
required to the extent the underlving benchmark U.S. treasury
vield has declined since issuance,

Aggregate maturities on all long-tenn debt at September 30,
2007 are as follows: $2 10,0 in 2008, $HK.0 in 20049, $327.0 in 2010,
$165.0 1in 2011, $225.0 in 2012 and $555.0 thereafier.

In October 2007, the Company borrowed $1.500 under a bridge
loun facidity which, together with cash on hand was used to acquire
Playtex. The Company subsequently refinanced $890 of the bridge
loan with long-term debt financing, with manuites ranging from
three 1o ten years and fixed rates ranging from 5.71% to 6.56%.
The Company expects to replace the remaining outstanding bridge
loan with permanent financing during the December quarter. As a
result ol the new financing arrangement, wotal outstanding debt in
October was approximately 33,300 and the Company has 3337.0 of
additional available comumined debt facilities 1o meet its ongoing

Licquiclity needs.

L1, Preferred Stock

The Company’s Articles ol Incorporation authorize the Company
10 Issue up o 10 million shares of $0.01 par value of preferred
stock. During the three vears ended September 30, 2007, there

were no shares of preferred stock outstanding,

12, Sharcholders Equity
On March 16, 20000 the Board of Directors declared a dividend
of one share purchase right (Right) fon each owstanding share

of ENR common stock, Eacly Riglu entitles a sharcholder of ENR

stock (o purchase an additional share of ENR stock at an exercise

price of $150.00, which price is subject to anti-dilution adjustments.
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Rights, however, may only be exercised i a person or group has
acquired, or commenced a public tender for 20% or more of the
outstancing ENR stock, unless the acquisition is pursuant to a ten-
der or exchange offer for all outstanding shares of ENR stock and
a majority of the Board of Directors determines that the price and
terms of the ofter are adequate and in the best interests of share-
holders (a Permited Offer). At the time that 209% or more of the
oulstanding ENR stock is actually acquired (other than in connee-
tion with a Permitted Offer), the exercise price of each Right will
be adjusted so thar the holder {other than the person or member
of the group that made the acquisition) may then purchase a share
of ENR stock at one-third of tts thencurrent market price. If the
Company merges with any other person or group afier the Rights
become exereisable, a holder of a Right may purchase, at the exer-
cise price, common stock of the surviving entity having a value
equal to twice the exercise price. If the Company transfers 50% or
more of its assets or earnings power to any other person or group
after the Righis become exercisable, o holder of a Right may pur-
chase, al the exercise price, common stock of the acquiring entity
having a value equal to twice the exercise price,

The Company can redeem the Rights aca price of $0.01 per
Right m wny time prior to the thme a persen or group actually
acquires 20% or more of the outstanding ENR stock (other than in
connection with a Permitted Offer). In addition, following the
acquisition by a person or group of at least 20%, but not more than
5% of 1he oustanding ENR stock {(other thann in connection with
a Permitted Offer), the Company may exchange cach Right lor
one share of ENR stock. The Company’s Board of Directors may
amend the ermis of the Rights at any time prior to the time a per-
son or group acquires 20% or more of the oustanding ENR stock
(other than in connection with a Permitied Ofier) and may amerd
the terms 1o lower the threshold for exercise of the Rights. If the
threshold is reduced, it cannot be lowered 1o a percentage that is
less than 10% or, if any shareholder holds 10% or more of the out-
sumding ENR stock at that tme, the reduced threshold must be
greater than the percentage held by that sharcholder. The Rights
will expire on Apnl 1, 2010.

At September 30, 2007, there were 300 million shares of ENR
stock uthorized, of which approximately 3.4 million shares were
reserved Tor issuance under the 2000 Incentive Stock Plan.

Beginning in September 2000, the Company’s Board of
Direcrors has approved a series of resolutions authorizing the
repurchase of shares of ENR common stock, with no commitments
by the Company to repurchase such shares. On July 24, 2006, the
Board of Directors approved the repurchase of up to an additional
10 million shares and 8.0 million shares remain under such author-
ization as of September 30, 2607. During liscal year 2007, approxi-

miately (0.8 million shares were purchased lor $53.0.

13, Financial Instruments and Risk Management
Foreign Currency Contracts At times, the Company enters into
loreign exchange forward contraces and, to o lesser extent, pur-

chases options and enters into zero-cost nption collars o mitigawe
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potentiad losses in earnings or cash flows on foreign currency urans-
actions. The Company has not designated any financial instruments
as hedges lor accounting purposes, Foreign currency exposures are
primarily related o anticipated intercompany purchase transac-
tions and intercompany borrowings, Other foreign currency
Lransactions to which the Company is exposed include external
purchase transactions and intercompany recenvables, dividends

and service fees.

The contractual amounts of the Company's forward exchange
contracts were $67.1 and $21.3 in 2007 and 2006, respectively.
These contractual amounts represent transaction volume outstand-
ing und do not represent the amount of the Company’s exposure
o credit or market loss. Foreign currency contracts are generally

tor one year or less.

Derivative Securities The Company uses raw materials that are
subject 1o price volatilie. Hedging instruments are used by the
Company as it desires to reduce exposure 10 variability in cash flows
associated with future purchases of zinc or other commodities.
These hedging instruments are accounted for under FAS 133 as
cash llow hedges. At Seprember 30, 2007, the fair market value of
the Company’s outstanding hedging instruments was an unrealized
pre-tax loss of $15.3. Realized gains and losses are reflected as
adjustments to the cost of the raw materiads. Over the next 12 17
maonths, approximately $13.4 of the loss recognized in

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income will be recognized in
carnings. For hedge ineffectiveness, losses of 80.5 were recorded

directly to Cost of Products Sold during the current fiscal year.

Contract maturites for these hedges extend into fiscal year 2009,

During the current year, the Company discontinued hedge
acceounting treatment for some of its contracts, most of which were
settled or unwound during the current fiscal year, These contracts
no longer met the accounting requircments of a cash flow hedge
because U was probable that the original forecasted transactions
will not oceur by the end of the originally specified time period.

The pre-tax losses on these hedges of $2.5 were recorded in Cost of
Praducts Sold.

Prepaid Share Options A portion of the Company’s deferred com-
petsation labilities is based on Company stock price and is subject
to market risk. The Company has entered into a net<cash setled
prepaid share option transaction with a linancial institution to miti-
gaue this risk, The change in fair valuce of 1the prepaid share options
is recorded in SG&A in the Consolidated Statements of Farnings.
Changes in value of the prepaic share option approximately offset
the afterax changes in the deferred compensation liabilities tied
o the Company’s stock price. Market value of the Company’s
investment in the prepaid share options was $59.3 and $50.8 a
September 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively, with approximately 0.5
and 0.7 willion prepaid share options outstanding at September 30,
2007 and 2006, respectively. The settlement date of the options
outstanding at 2007 yearend is September 30, 2008, The change

iny fuir value of the prepaid share option for the year ended
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September H). 2007 and 2006 resulted inincome of $23.2 and

S10.8. respectively.

Concentration of Credit Risk The counterparties

foreign cu-

reney contracts consist of a number of major international financial
institttions and are generally institations with which the Company

maintins lines of credin, The Company does not enter into foreign

exchange contraats through brokers nor does it trade loreign

exchange contracts onany other exchange or overah

C-COUIer

markets. Risk of currency positions and mark-to-market valuation

of positions are stricly monitored at all times.

The Company continually monitors positions witl

, and credit

ratings of, counterpartics both internally and by using outside rat-

ing agencies, The Gompany has implemented policie
amount of agreemaents it enters into with any one pag

perfornumce by these counterparties exposes the Col

potential credit losses, such losses are not anticipated
control features mentioned.

The Company sells 1o a large number of castome

5 that limit the
1. While non-
mpany to

due to the

s primarily in

the retail rade, meluding those in mass merchandising, drugstore,

supermarket and other channels of disuibution throy

whout the

world. The Company performs ongoing evaluations of its cus-

tomers (inancial condition and creditworthiness, bat
generally require collateral. The Company's largest

hael obligations 1o the Company with a carrving value

does not
Istomer
of $91.1

at September 30, 2007, While the competitiveness of the retail

industry pre

mis an inherent uncertainty, the Company does
) i

not believe a significant risk of loss from a concentration of eredit

visk exists with respect 1o accouns receivable,

Financial Instruments Thie Compuany's financial instr

include cash and cash equivalents, short-term and lon

UL

rterm deht

and foreign arreney contscts, Due o the nature of cash and cash

equivalents ;ud shorHerm borrowings, including notes payable, car-

rving amounts on the balance sheet approximate fair value.

At September 30, 2007 i 2006, the fair market value of fixed

rate long-term debt was 314281 and 31.454.8, respec

pared to its carrving vilue ol §1,475.0 and $1.485.0, re

ively, con-

spectively.

The book value ol the Company's variable rmate debt approximates

fair value. The Fair valoe of the long-term debt 1s estin

vields obtained rom independent pricing sources for

ated using

similar nvpes

of horrowing armugemess,

The fair value ol foreign currency contracts is the amouant that
the Company would receive or pay o terminate the contracts, con-
sidering first, quoted market prices of comparable agreements, or in
the absence of quoted market prices, such factors as inlerest rates.
currency exclunge rates and remaining maturities. BELL‘(I on these
considerations, the Company would muke an insignificant payment
for omstanding foreign curreney continets at September 30, 2007
and 2006, However, these payments are unlikely due 1o the fact that
the Company enters into foreign currency contracts 1o hedge identi-
tiable foreign currency exposures, and as such would generally not

terminaite such contracts,
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L Frvironmental and Legal Matters

Government Regulation and Environmental Matters The opera-
tions of the Company, like those ol other companies engaged in the
battery and wet shaving products businesses, are subject 1o various
federal, state, foreign and local laws and regulatons intended 1o
prowect the public health and the environment. These regulations
prinarily relate 10 worker safery, aiv and water qualit: underground
fuel storage tanks and waste handling and disposal. The Company
has recetved notces from the ULS, Eovironmental Protection
Ageney, seate agencies and /or private parties seeking contabution,
that it has been identificd as a “potentally responsible party” (PRP)
wrder the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation
and Liabitiny Act, and may he required 1o shave in the cost of
cleanup with respect to seven tederal "Superfund” sites. [tmay also
be required 1o slare inthe cost of cleanup with respect to fwo state-
desigmated sites or other sites awtside of the U.S.

Accrued envirommental costs at September 30, 2007 were $12.5,
of which $2.6 is expected o be spentin liscal 2008, This acoral is
not meastred ona discounted basis, s difficult 1o quandty with
certainty the cost of emvironmental matters. particularly remediation
aned future capital expendinres for environmental control equip-
ment. Nevertheless, based on informaton currentdy available, the
Company behieves the possibilite of marerial environmental costs in

excess of the acored amount is remote.

Legal Proceedings T Company and its subsidiaries are parties 1o a
number of legal proceedings in vardous jurisdictions arising out of the
operations of its businesses. Many of these legal matters are in prelimi-
nary stages and imvolve complex issaes of Taw and fact, and may pro-
ceed for provacted peniods of dme. The ameount of liability, if any,
from these procecdings cannot be determined with certamn.
However, based upon present information, the Company believes that
its ultinate liability, il aoy, arising rom pending legal proceedings,
asserted legal claims and known potentdal legal claims which are likely
10 be asserted, should not be material 1o the Company’s financial posi-

tion, taking into account established acenuls for estimated liabilities.

Ih. Other Connmitments and Contingencies
An international alliliste of the Company has $8.3 of funds
deposited in sy ik account that is acting as collateral tor a certain
hank loan. The Company has reflected this bank deposin as
restricted cash. which s included in other current assets on the
Comsolidied Balanee Sheet, The loan was initated in Junie 2004
for athree month period. At cach manarity. the Company renewed
the agrevinent. As the loan amouant changes, the funds on deposit
will be required to increase or decrease with the loan amount.
Beginning in 2006, the impact of this transaction is reflected in
the investing section of the Consolidimed Statement of Cash Flows,
Total rental expense for all operaing leases was $28.0, $27.1 and
$26.2 in 2007, 20006 and 2005, respectively. Future minimum rental
cammitments under noncancelable operating leases in effect as off
Seprember 30, 2007 were $14.2 in 2008, $11.6 m 2000, $9.5 in 2010,
$6.2 1m 2011, $2.8 in 2012 and $4.3 thereatier. These leases are pri-

warily o office facilities.
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16. Supplemental Financial Statement Information

Supplemental Balance Sheet Information

2007 2006
Inventories
Raw materials and supplies $ 651 § 754
Work in process 109.4 117.8
Finished products 407.8 360.7
Total inventories % S5B2.3 $ 5539
QOther Current Assets
Miscellaneous receivables § M $ 358
Deferred income tax benefits 98.3 88.2
Prepaid expenses B8.1 56.3
Prepaid share options 59.3 50.8
Other 10.8 16.2
Total cther current assets $ 2776 $ 2473
Property at Cost
Land $ 253 $ 2641
Buildings 206.7 2091
Machinery and equipment 1,284.0 1,240.1
Construction in progress 54.5 49.2
Total gross property 1,680.5 15245
Accumulated depreciation 930.6 864.6
Total net property at cost 5 6499 $ 659.9
Other Assets
Pension asset $ 1252 $ 881
Deferred charges and other assets 76.0 78.3
Total other assets 5 201.2 $ 166.4
Other Current Liabilities
Accrued advertising, promotion and allowances $ 294.9 $ 2368
Accrued salaries, vacations and incentive compensation 1121 96.7
Cther 207.3 198.2
Total other current liabilties S 6143 $ 5317
Other Noncurrent Liabilities
Pensions and other retirement benefits $ 1753 $ 2045
Deterred compensation 161.6 107.7
Other noncurrent liabilities 67.3 56.1
Tatal other noncurrent liabilities S 404.2 $ 3683
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Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
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2007 2006 2005

Balance at beginning of year $ 109 $ 125 $15.0
Provision charged to expense, net of reversals (0.2) - 0.8
Write-offs, less recoveries 0.9 {1.6) 3.3
Balance at end of year S 9.8 $ 109 $125
Income Tax Valuation Allowance

2007 2006 2005
Balance at beginning of year $ 10.7 $ 15.1 $24.7
Provision charged to expense 0.5 1.8 4.9
Reversal of provision charged to expense (4.3) 5.7 (14.7)
Write-offs, translation, other (2.0} €.5) 0.2
Balance at end of year 5 49 $ 107 $15.1
Supplemental Cash Flow Statement Information

2007 2006 2005
Interest paid S 90.4 $ 66.7 $48.1
Income taxes paid 108.5 113.3 86.4

17. Scgment Information
Operations [or the Company are managed via three major seg-
metits — North Amnerica Battery (U.S. and Canada battery and
lighting products), International Bauery (rest of world battery
and lighting products) and Razors and Blades (global cazors,
blades, and related producis). The Company reporis segment
results rellecting all profit derived from each outside customer
sale in the region in which the customenr is l()caltfd.‘ Rescarch and

development costs for the battery segments are combined and

included in the Towl Battery segment results. Research and
development costs for Razors and Blades are included in that
segment's resulis. Segment performance is evaluated based on
segment npcr;uiug pruﬁl exclusive of gcneral COTpOTALE eXpenses,
share-based compensation costs, costs assuciated with most

restructuring, integration or business realignment and amortiza-

ton of intangible assews. Financial items. such as interest income

and expense, are managed on a global basis at the corporate
level. This structure is the basts for the Company’s reportable

operating segment information.

The Company’s eperating model includes a combination of
stand-alone and combined business functions heoveen the battery
and ruzors and blades businesses, varving by counury and region
of the world. Shared Tanctions inchude product warehousing and
elistribution, various transaction processing functions, emvironmen-
tal actvitics, and in soine countries, combined sales forces and
management. The Company applics a fully allocated cost basis, in
which shared business functions are allocated between the busi-
nesses. Such allocations do not represent the costs of such services
il performed on a stand-alone basis,

Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. and s subsidiaries accounted for 18.8%,
18.5% and 17.5% ol total net sales in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respec-
tively, primarily in North America. Corporate assets shown in the
following wble include all cash and cash equivalents, financial
instuments, pension assets and deferred wax assets that are man-

aged owside of operating segments.
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2007 2006 2005
Net Sales
North America Battery $1,330.6 $1,233.8 $1,173.1
International Battery 1,045.7 9133 885.9
Total Battery 2,376.3 2,147.1 2,056.0
Razors and Blades 988.8 §929.8 93C.8
Total net sales $3,365.1 $3,076.9 $2,.080.8
Prafitability
North America Battary $ 3305 $ 3007 % 2958
International Battery 177.7 177.3 178.5
R&D Battery {35.9) (35.7} (36.0)
Total Battery 472.3 442.3 438.3
Razors and Blades 155.5 127.7 107.5
Total segment profitability 627.8 5700 545.8
General corporate and other expenses {111.5) (i28.9) {101.7)
Amgniization (5.4) (5.3 (5.3)
Interast and other financial items (76.7) 70.2) 50.1
Total earnings before income taxas $ 434.2 $ 3566 $ 3887
Depreciation and Amortization
North America Battery $ 475 § 452 $ 439
International Battery 19.0 206 19.0
Total Battery 66.5 65.8 62.9
Razors and Blades 42.2 43.0 47.4
Total segment depreciation 108.7 108.8 110.3
Corporale 6.3 87 8.0
Jotal depreciation and amortization $ 115.0 $ 1175 $ 1163
Total Assets
MNorth America Battery $ 8402 $ 845.2
International Battery 634.2 545.7
Total Battery 1,474.4 1,390.9
Razors and Blades 664.1 621.3
Total segment assets 2,138.5 20122
Corporate 724.0 4492
Goodwill and other intangible assets 690.5 671.2
Total assets $3,553.0 $3,132.6
Capital Expenditures
North America Battery $ 348 $ 372 $ 576
International Battery 19.4 1.5 15.4
Total Battery 54,2 48.7 73.0
Razors and Blades 341 37.5 296
Total segment capital expenditures 8.3 86.2 102.6
Corparate 0.3 8.7 04
Total capital expenditures $ B86 $ 949 $ 103.0
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Geographic segiment information on a legal entity he

vrgizer Holdings, Tne.

is:

£

2007 2006 2005
Net Sales to Customers
United States $1,561.4 $1,474.5 $1,408.2
International 1,803.7 1.602.4 1,680.6
Total net sales $3,365.1 $3‘O76.9[ $2,989.8
Long-Lived Assets
United States 5 5157 $ 502.4
Germany 137.9 126.5
Other International 197.5 197.4
Total long-lived assets § 8511 $ 8263

The Company’s infernational net sales are derive
tomers in numerous countries, with sales to custome
resenting 4%, 5.0% and 5.7% of the Company’s 1o
20017, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Sales to custowmers,
single foreign countries represented less than 5% off

otal sales for each of the three vears ended Septeml

1 from cus-

s in Japan rep-
al sales in

in all othey
the Company's

er 3.

Supplemental product information is presented below
for net sales:
2007 2006 2008
Net Sales
Alkaling batteries $1,461.9 $1,338.0 $1.3300
Carbon zinc batteries 249.9 2422 254.0
Other batteries
and lighting products 664.5 566.9 475.0
Razors and Blades 938.8 929.81 9308
[
Total net sales $3,365.1 $3.076.9 $2,989.8

2007 Annnal Repoent

18. Presentation of Statemaents ol Cash Flows

The Statetment of Cash Flows for fiscal year 2000 was adjusted in
accordance with SFAS 123R 1o reflect excess tax henefits of $20.4
as an inflow from financing activities.

In prior years” Consolidited Statements of Cash Flows, certain
horrowings and repayiments under revolving lines of credit were
presented separately in the financing section (gross basis), For debt
instruments with original maturities of less than 90 days, SFAS No.
95, “Statement of Cash Flows,” permits borrowings and repayiments
10 he netted for presentation in the Consolidated Statements of
Cash Flows, For fiscal 2006, the Company began presenting all
horrowings with original maturities of less than 90 days, including
those under the aforementioned revoling lines of credit, on a ne
basis and only borrowings with original maturities of 0 davs or
greater will be presented on a gross basis. Prior year wnounts have

heen chianged w conform o the crent prescutation,
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19, Quarterly Financial Infornmation ~ (Unaudited)
The results of any single quarter are not necessarily indicative of the Company's results for the full vear. Net earnings of the Company are

sigmificantly impacted in the firse quarter by the additional batery product sales volume associated with the December holiday scason.

First Second Third Fourth

Fiscal 2007
Nel sales 5059.2 $730.9 $800.0 $875.0
Gross profit 454,2 346.3 378.5 425.7
Net sarmnings 122.3 66.6 62.5 70.0
Basic earnings per share 5 2186 $ 118 $ 1.10 $ 1.23
Diluted earnings per share $ 208 S 1.14 S 1.06 S 1.19
ltems increasing/idecreasing) net earings:

Restructuring and related charges 2.3) {3.0) (2.3} (4.6}

Adjustments to prior years' tax accruals - - 3.5 4.4

Deferred tax benefit due to statutory rate change - - - 9.7

Foreign benefits related to prior years' losses - - 4.3 -
Fiscal 2006
Net sales $882.4 $629.5 8734.9 $830.1
Gross profit 431.4 307.8 357.4 384.2
Net earnings 120.5 50.0 51.3 39.1
Basic earnings per sharg $ 1.83 $ o3 $ 086 $ 068
Diluted earnings per share $ 177 $ 078 $ o83 $ 066 43
ltems increasing/(decreasing) net earnings:

Restructuring and related charges 3.1) - {7.9) {13.9)

Adjustments to prior years’ 1ax accruals - - B.6 2.3

Foreign benefits related to prior years' losses - - - 57

Foreign pensicn charge - - - 3.7)

20. Subsequent Event

On October 1, 2007, the Company paid approximatcly $1,900

for the acquision of all outstanding Playex common stock,
repaviment or defeasance of outstancing Playviex debt, and other
transaction costs, Playtex is a leading North American manufac-
turer and marketer in the skin, feminine and infant care industries,
with a diversificd portfolio of well-recognized branided consumer

products. Towl cnuerprise value of the transaction was financed

through cash and existing and new committed credit facilities. For
further information on debt acquired as a result of this acquisition,

see Now 1
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Corporate Information

Corporate Headquarters
Energizer Floldings, Inc.
533 Marwille University D
St Louis, Missouri 63§41
(31439852000

W, !!Il(’l'gi? cr.com

Date and State of
Incorporation

September 23, 1999 — Missouri

Fiscal Year-End
September 30

Shareholders
On September 28, 2007, there were
approximately 13,000 sharcholders

of record.

Independent Accountants
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

St. Louis. Missouri

Annual Meeting
The Compiany’s annual meeting

of sharcholders is scheduled for

January 28, 2008, a1 3:30 p.m, at

Erergizer’s World Headquarters,
533 Marwville University Drive,
St. Louis, Missourt 63141,

Common Stock Information

The table below sets for the fiscal
quarter indicated the reported high
and low sale prices of the
Company's common stock, as

reported on the New York Stock

Exchange.

Fiscal 2007 High Low
First Quarter 8044 6546
Second Quarter 8834  71.19
Third Guarter 102.00 8468
Fourth Quarter 11418 8764

Dividends
To date, the Company has not
declared nor paid any cash

dividend.

SEC Form 10-K

Shareholders may receive a copy

of the Company's Annual Report

to the Securities and Exchange
Commission on Form 10-K {ree

of charge by writing or calling the
Investor Relations Department at
Energizer's corporate headguarters,
as listed above or by retrieving this
information from the campany’s

website, www.energizer.com,

Code of Ethics

The Company has adopted a code
of ethies that is applicable to all of
its directors and employees, includ-
ing the Chicf Execurive Officer,
Excoutive Vice President and Chiel
Financial Officer, and Controller.
The Company’s code of ethics has
been posted on the Company’s

websile at www.energizer.com.

Officer Certifications

As required by Sections 302 and 906
of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002,
the Campany has filed certifications
of i1s Chiefl Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer with the
Securitics and Exchange Commissien
as exhibits to its Annual Report on
Form 0K for the period ended
September 30, 2007, In addition, the
Chicf Executive Officer has certifted
to the New York Stock Exchange
("NYSE") that he is not aware of any
violations by the Company of the
NYSE corporate governance

listing stanelurds.

Transfer Agent and Registrar
Continental S1ock Transter & Trust
Company is Energiver’s stock transter
agent and registar and maintains
the Company’s shareholder records.
Sharcholders needing information
about account records, stock
certificates and change of address

should contact

Continental Stock

Transfer & Trust Company

1’7 Battery Place South. 8th Floor
New York, NY 10004

(BR8) KG5580

Financial Community
Information
[nquiries from institutional

investors, financial anulysts,

registered representatives,
porttolio managers and
individual shareholders should
he directed to Investor Relations
at Energizer's corporate

headquarters listed above,
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